
CITY OF NORTH OAKS

Regular City Council Meeting
Thursday, May 09, 2024

7:00 PM, Community Meeting Room, 100 Village Center Drive
MEETING AGENDA

Remote Access  - City Council members will participate in person in Council Chambers (Community Room,
100 Village Center Drive, Suite 150, North Oaks, MN) and from the following locations: (John Shuman
- 680 North Orange Avenue, Orlando, FL, 32801  Members of the public are welcome to attend.  Any
person wishing to monitor the meeting electronically from a remote location may do so by calling the
following Zoom meeting videoconference number: 1-312-626-6799, Webinar ID: 890 5825 7977 or by
joining the meeting via the following link:  https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89058257977  

1.Call to Order

2.Roll Call

3.Pledge of Allegiance

4.Citizen Comments  - Members of the public are invited to make comments to the Council during the public
comments section. Up to four minutes shall be allowed for each speaker. No action will be taken by the
Council on items raised during the public comment period unless the item appears as an agenda item
for action.

5.Approval of Agenda

6.Consent Agenda  - These are items that are considered routine and can be acted upon with one vote.
6a.Approval of Fireworks Permit Requests for North Oaks Golf Club - June 1st, 2024 and June 8th, 2024

Fireworks Permit App 6.1.24.pdf

Fireworks Permit App 6.8.24.pdf

6b.National Police Week Proclamation May 12-18, 2024
Proclamation - Police Week - North Oaks.pdf

6c.Licenses for Approval:

Arborist: Clean Cut Outdoor Services

1

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2576884/Fireworks_Permit_App_6.1.24.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2576885/Fireworks_Permit_App_6.8.24.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2579609/Proclamation_-_Police_Week_-_North_Oaks.pdf


City Council May 09, 2024

2

Mechanical: Master Gas Fitters, Inc.

6d.Approval of City Council meeting minutes of 4.11.2024
4.11.2024 Council minutes Draft db2.pdf

6e.Approval of City Financials

EFT: 000845E - 000854E, Checks 015308 - 015345
May 2024 Check register.pdf

May 2024 Check register detail and charts.pdf

May 2024 Budget Spreadsheets.pdf

6f.  Approval of Gambling Permit for CommonBond Communities Birdies for Hope Event - 6.24.2024
Commonond App. for Exempt Permit.pdf

CBC 501(c)(3) Letter 2015 (4).pdf

7.Petitions, Requests & Communications  - Deputy Matt Lassegard Report 
7a.Deputy Lassegard Report - NOT IN ATTENDANCE (report is attached)

MAY2024CouncilMeeting.docx

8.Unfinished Business

9.New Business
9a.Consider Conditional Use Permit for home height in excess of 35 feet for property located at 8 Sherwood Trail.

Consider driveway setback variance.
2024-05-09 CC packet_8 Sherwood Trail.pdf

9b.Consider Ordinance amending City Code XV, Chapter 151, regarding garage definitions and garage size standards
2024-05-09 CC Packet_garage size ordinance.pdf

9c.Consider License Plate Reader Pilot program and safety and security initiatives 

9d.Discussion and possible action on water meter pits and meter proposal along Centerville Road
4-18-24 Water Meter Pit Proposal.pdf

9e.Consider Resolution accepting resignation and declaring vacancy
Memo re JS Resignationkk.pdf

NO Resolution Council Vacancy JS.pdf

10.Council Member Reports

11.City Administrator Reports

12.City Attorney Reports

2

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2601512/4.11.2024_Council_minutes_Draft_db2.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2610504/May_2024_Check_register.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2610529/May_2024_Check_register_detail_and_charts.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2610530/May_2024_Budget_Spreadsheets.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2604493/Commonond_App._for_Exempt_Permit.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2604494/CBC_501_c__3__Letter_2015__4_.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2599243/MAY2024CouncilMeeting.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2600300/2024-05-09_CC_packet_8_Sherwood_Trail.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2600301/2024-05-09_CC_Packet_garage_size_ordinance.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2601142/4-18-24_Water_Meter_Pit_Proposal.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2603687/Memo_re_JS_Resignationkk.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2602905/NO_Resolution_Council_Vacancy_JS.pdf


City Council May 09, 2024

3

13.Miscellaneous
13a.April 2024 City Forester Report

April in Review.pdf

14.Adjournment  - The next meeting of the City Council is Thursday, June 13, 2024.

3

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2597927/April_in_Review.pdf


4



5



6



7



8



9



10



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

______________________________ 

       Krista Wolter, Mayor 

Attest: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Kevin Kress, City Administrator 

 

WHEREAS, In 1962, President Kennedy proclaimed May 15 as National Peace Officers Memorial Day and 
the calendar week in which May 15 falls, as National Police Week; and 

 

WHEREAS, National Police Week was established by a joint resolution of the United States Congress in 
1962; and 

 

WHEREAS, There are approximately 800,000 law enforcement officers serving in communities across 
the United States, including the dedicated members of the Ramsey County Sheriff’s Office; and 

 

WHEREAS, Everyday law enforcement officers are the first to be on the scene to help those in need and 
are dedicated to serving the community; and 

 

WHEREAS, National Police Week pays special recognition to law enforcement officers who have lost their 
lives in the line of duty for the safety and protection of others; and 

 

WHEREAS, Over 43,000 assaults against law enforcement officers are reported each year, resulting in 
approximately 15,000 injuries, and assaults against officers in Minnesota have increased by over 120% in the last 
two years; and 

 

WHEREAS, Since the first recorded death in 1786, over 23,000 law enforcement officers in the United 
States have made the ultimate sacrifice and been killed in the line of duty, including members of the Ramsey 
County Sheriff’s Office; and 

 

WHEREAS, The names of these dedicated public servants are engraved on the walls of the National Law 
Enforcement Officers Memorial in Washington, D.C.; and 

 

WHEREAS, In 2023, 136 officers were killed nationwide in the line of duty and their names will be added 
to the National Law Enforcement Officers Memorial this spring; and  

 

WHEREAS, The service and sacrifice of all officers killed in the line of duty will be honored during the 
National Law Enforcement Officers Memorial Fund’s Candlelight Vigil on May 13, 2024; and 
 

WHEREAS, On May 15, 2024, the service and sacrifice of all officers killed in the line of duty will be 
honored by the National Law Enforcement Officers Memorial Fund and the Minnesota Law Enforcement 
Memorial Association; and 
 

WHEREAS, The service and sacrifice of Ramsey County suburban law enforcement officers killed in the 
line of duty will be honored during the Ramsey County Suburban Law Enforcement Memorial Ceremony on May 
16th, 2024; Now, Therefore, Be It 
 

PROCLAIMED, The North Oaks City Council designates May 12 - 18, 2024 as Police Week in Ramsey 
County, and publicly salutes the service of law enforcement officers in our community and in communities across 
the nation. 

 

11



North Oaks City Council 

Meeting Minutes 

North Oaks City Council Chambers 

April 11, 2024 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Wolter called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.  

 

2. ROLL CALL 

Present: Mayor Krista Wolter. Councilors Mark Azman, John Shuman, Sara Shah, Tom Watson 

Staff Present: Administrator Kevin Kress, City Attorney Bridget Nason, City Planner Mike 

Nielsen 

Others Present: Videographer Ninenorth Sam 

A quorum was declared present.  

 

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Mayor Wolter led the Council in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

4. CITIZEN COMMENTS 

 

Kevin Kress read a citizen comment letter from resident Katie Robertson questioning the need 

for licensing pets in the City, and asking for Council to consider eliminating this requirement 

within the ordinance. *The complete letter is attached to the minutes. 

 

Rich Dujmovic, 15 Black Oak Road, thanked Council for their service.  Several residents have 

contacted him this week regarding the Met Council discussions which are occurring with the 

City.  He feels many residents selected their homes based on the RSL low density designation, 

and is concerned about any discussions that result in Met Council requiring additional density. 

He looks forward to a public hearing on this topic.  

 

5. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Administrator Kress asked to Met Council application withdrawal letter for consideration as item 

9c.  

 

MOTION by Shah seconded by Watson, to approve the Agenda as revised.  

Motion carried unanimously by roll call vote. 

 

 

6. CONSENT AGENDA 

 

6. Consent Agenda - These are items that are considered routine and can be acted upon with 

one vote. 

6a. Approval of Licenses: 

Arborists: Balsam Tree and Shrub; B4K Tree Industries; Central Minnesota Tree Service; 

Expert Tree; Primo Tree Experts LLC; Renstrom Tree Service; Rivard Tree Service; Vital 

Tree Service, LLC; 

12



Minutes of the City Council Meeting  April 11, 2024 

P a g e  | 2 

 

Mechanical: Air America Heating & Cooling, Inc.; B & D Plumbing, Heating & A/C; Don's 

Mechanical; Heating & Cooling Two; Little Igloo Heating & Air Condition, Inc.; Metro Gas 

Installers; Titan Heating & Cooling Inc. 

 

6b. Approval of City Council Minutes from: Special meeting on 2.8.2024 and Regular City 

Council Meeting on 2.8.2024 

 

6c. Approve resolution accepting donation – Aging in Place Grant 

 

6d. Approve resolution for CUP for building height in excess of 35 feet for property located 

at 1 Sherwood Trail 

 

6e. Approve resolution for CUP for building height in excess of 35 feet for property located 

at 2 Sherwood Trail 

 

6f. Approve resolution for CUP for Garage Size in Excess of 1,500 Square Feet and 

Building Addition at 70 West Pleasant Lake Road 

 

6g. Resolution approving septic variance at 4 Dove Lane 

 

6h. Resolution approving septic variance at 6 Badger Lane 

 

6i. Accept 2023 Audited Financials 

 

6j. Approval of City Financials - EFTs: 820e – 323e, 827e – 843e, Checks #15255 - 15307 

 

MOTION by Shuman, seconded by Azman, to approve the Consent Agenda as presented. 

Motion carried unanimously by roll call vote. 

 

Watson inquired why Audit was in consent agenda. Kress noted it is an acceptance of Audit. 

Watson noted that in the future he would prefer the auditor to come present to Council to note 

whether clean audit and summary of findings.  

 

Shah thanked the Planning Commission for doing the heavy lifting and careful review of all the 

CUP’s and Variance requests. 

 

7. PETITIONS, REQUESTS & COMMUNICATIONS  

a. Deputy Matt Lassegard Report 

Deputy Lassegard presented a summary of his monthly report which includes:  

• 150 Calls for service. The most notable was a car approaching a young child asking them 

to get in the car, which thankfully they did not. Requests that parents please speak to their 

children about stranger safety, go in pairs, know their address and phone number, and to 

be honest – don’t be afraid to tell adult if something suspicious or unusual like this 

happens.  

13



Minutes of the City Council Meeting  April 11, 2024 

P a g e  | 3 

• Animal complaints - ensure that residents are on same page with keeping their pets in 

check and in their yards. Residents have a right to walk in road without being accosted by 

pets in street. 

• Overall it’s been quieter in neighborhood. Contractor vehicles will be in area now and 

will pick up now through fall. Suggest MN public history criminal database to see if 

public criminal record.  Recommend vet your contractors and those doing business with. 

• There was a car driving down Ridge Road at high rate of speed and doing donuts on golf 

course. They have been unable to get additional information on it at this time.  

• Recommended to bring back out the speed monitor and keep moving it around the 

community. Will request NOHOA bring it back out.  

• Watson asked about the increase in PPV (police proactive patrol) incidents listed on the 

daily Sherriff report.  He noted this is often when visiting an area proactively to safeguard 

a home, a street that has had issues in past, or when they have meetings, etc.  

• The next block captain meeting is April 16th at 6:30 p.m.  

 

 

8. UNFINISHED BUSINESS  

8a. Consider ordinance amending City Code Title XV, Chapter 151, Regarding Solar Energy 

Systems 

• Planner Lindahl noted that a year ago Incarnation Church approached the City regarding 

possibility for ground solar.  Council asked the Planning Commission to investigate this 

issue. They had several vendors in as well as the originator of the model solar ordinance.  

They have drafted an ordinance which outlines conditions such as: CUP required, must 

be in RSM district, minimum 10-acre lot, solar array must be in side or rear yard, meet 

principal building setbacks and possible landscape buffer required.   

• Council can choose to adopt ordinance, or direct staff to revise.  

• Shah noted that Planning Commission has thoroughly vetted the ordinance, however 

deferred to City Council to determine the acreage minimum. She noted that many 

surround communities are now allowing ground mounted solar and wondering if we 

should make it even more accessible to more properties than just the larger 10-acre RCM 

lots. Screening term could be subjective and NOHOA ASC may be more equipped to 

address screening requirements.  

• Azman feels that screening should be part of the ordinance, and wouldn’t support it at 2 

acres. The report states 46 parcels would meet requirements if allowed ground solar on 

properties with 3 ½ + acres.  

• Watson asked if Incarnation still meets the parking requirement if they were to take some 

parking spots for solar on the ground. 

• Lindahl noted that if the Ordinance passed, Incarnation would still need to apply for CUP 

and go through the review process.  

• Wolter wanted to be sure that the height listed in the ordinance meets the height of 

ground solar. Lindahl noted the state ordinance sample is at 15 feet in height.  

• The City has not had any ground mounted solar requests at this time.  

• Shah noted the positive impact solar energy has on reducing carbon emissions. 

 

MOTION by Watson, seconded by Azman, to approve draft ordinance as presented in the 

packet.  

14



Minutes of the City Council Meeting  April 11, 2024 

P a g e  | 4 

 

Mayor Wolter noted she would be in favor of allowing it on 3 ½ acre lots in RSM district by 

CUP process.  

 

Shah was like to reduce the 10 acres to 3 ½, changing 12 to 15 feet, and requiring screening to 

being approved by NOHOA ASC.  

 

Planner Lindahl stated for RSM with 10 acres minimum it would be applicable for only 3 

properties.  If it is changed to 3 ½ acres, then 20 properties could apply. 

 

Azman would be in favor of 3 ½ acres, 15 feet in height maximum, with screening.  

 

Watson is in favor of moving forward with 10 acres and 15 feet in height, and adjust if necessary 

when applicants with smaller lots start coming forth requesting ground solar.  

 

MOTION by Azman, seconded by Watson, to amend the motion on the table to approve to 

Section D1a. for RSM district to substitute 10 acres with 3 ½ acres, and section 3. Height 

shifting from 12 feet to 15 Feet in height allowed. Motion carried unanimously.  

 

Shah noted screening is referenced in 4 and 9b. Wolter just wants to make sure it is clear and not 

too vague.  

 

The primary MOTION has been amended by Watson, seconded by Azman, to approve 

with the amendments. Motion carried unanimously.  

 

MOTION by Watson, seconded by Azman, to approve Ordinance 146 and Summary 

Resolution 1515 summary. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

9. NEW BUSINESS 

9a. Consider Ordinance amending City Code, Title XV, Chapter 151, Regarding Building 

heights and Setbacks in the RSL – Residential Single-Family Low-Density District  

 

• Lindahl noted the working group and Planning Commission have reviewed this several 

times. In the February Planning Commission meeting the commission agreed on the height of 

6 feet. There was a lot of discussion by Planning Commissioners on the number of 6 feet 

which would be required to get to a walk out. Some Commissioners thought perhaps CUP’s 

for excess height, as long as not more than the maximum 42 feet, did not need to come to 

Planning Commission for review. The revised ordinance in the packet was approved by vote 

of 6-1.  

• Kress read comments by resident Franny Skanser-Lewis, 3 Red Maple Lane, opposing the 

increased height or easing of procedural requirements to approve excess building height. 

Asks they remain as exist.  * Ms. Skanser-Lewis’ full comments are attached to the minutes.  

• Kress noted that the CUP process has remained the same for many years, these revisions help 

to clarify the setbacks and heights.  There is NO change to the max 42 feet in height that is 

already in the Ordinance.  

15



Minutes of the City Council Meeting  April 11, 2024 

P a g e  | 5 

• Watson is concerned with the policy regarding the 3-foot water table in the Surface Water 

management plan, agreed upon by VLAWMO. He feels it should be greater than 3 feet to 

accommodate wetter seasons. 

• The architecture of current homes are being built with higher peaks.  The revised verbiage 

clarifies which side of home needs to have the extra setback. 

• Wolter asked to discuss section 3i and 3c 

• Shah has issues with 3c. She is not sure if there is enough clarity in the moving of the land 

restrictions.  

• Watson inquired if this ordinance would impact some of the current projects going on in 

regards to in-fill for remodels. Determining the bottom height of height measurement could 

be ambiguous.  Azman thought that the CUP for fill would address those issues. 

• Shah wants to be sure the revised ordinance will be clear for tear down and rebuilds.   

• Azman stated the revised ordinance provides more measurements to this and is a good 

compromise.  

 

MOTION by Azman, seconded by Watson, to move to Adopt Ordinance 145 and 

Resolution 1516 Summary as presented.  

 

• Azman feels that the complaints by the Red Maple neighborhood are alleviated by this 

revision. Wolter asks about 3c. Azman stated that 3c has more measurable metrics to help 

clarify “Naturally suited”, than in the prior ordinance.  

• Shah feels that moving 8 feet should be acceptable if sufficient by Planning Commission.  

• Vertical height measurement is from grade to highest point in home.  

• Wolter asked about 7d. and requirement of basement and 2 full stories. There are several 

traditional homes within North Oaks that have a walk-up story into attic. Kress noted those 

would be legal non-conforming and could be rebuilt that way, but the new ordinance would 

prevent a brand-new home to be built with 4 stories.  

• Mark Houge, North Oaks Company, stated it would be extremely helpful to have this 

clarified for new homeowners so they know what they can build. He feels builders need 2 

feet grade up to allow for drainage slope.  The garage floor must also be a step up into the 

main level floor. He feels the new verbiage also helps clarify the side setback. Interpret it to 

say “before grading” that there must be 6 feet of natural grade change for a walk out.  Houge 

feels the 6 foot as presented is reasonable. 

 

Motion carried unanimously. 

 

• Mayor Wolter would like the subcommittee to take a look to ensure ordinances are suited to 

encourage and promote redevelopment of lots within older sections as plan in future of North 

Oaks.  

• Administrator Kress stated the subcommittee will keep this in mind as they review 

ordinances.  

 

9b. Consider resolution supporting retention of City zoning  

 

Attorney Nason shared that MN State legislation HB4009 and HB4010 which were introduced 

during the current Minnesota legislative session that would minimize the authority of local 

16



Minutes of the City Council Meeting  April 11, 2024 

P a g e  | 6 

government that would override local zoning authority.  The LMC shows that HB 4009 will not 

move forward this season, HB 4010 meets in subcommittee tomorrow.  This would require City 

to accept different forms of multifamily housing within residential single-family zoning districts, 

eliminate ability of City to impose a FAR, require accessory dwelling units be permitted on 

single family lots, and allow multi-family housing be permitted in Commercial districts. Private 

covenants such as NOHOA are not impacted by the State proposals and would still apply such as 

restrictions on lot splits.  

 

The Council packet includes a Resolution that the City opposing the Minnesota state legislation 

that removes controls at the local level. If approved, the Resolution would be sent to MN 

legislature and committee chairs to reinforce the City position on this matter.  Private covenants 

or restrictions would still apply and not allow multi-unit dwellings, lot splits, etc.  

 

Shah asked if our legal teams has talked to the NOHOA legal team to strengthen their rules if 

need be. Nason stated that they have not, they would wait to see what had been passed at the 

State level and then reach out accordingly. 

 

MOTION by Shah, seconded by Watson, to approve Resolution 1518 to maintain local 

control of zoning matters.  Motion carried unanimously.  

 

Watson noted there is only two weeks for these matters to make it through both legislatures, 

however it is possible it may also get amended to other unrelated bills.  

 

Shah encouraged residents to call their local legislators on this matter.  

 

MOTION by Shah, seconded by Watson to change the Resolution 1518 to 1517.  Motion 

carried unanimously. 

 

9c.  Discussion to withdrawn the Met Council request to provide municipal sewer and water to 

Red Forest Way 

 

• Back in 2023, the City received from the North Oaks Company subdivision application for 

Red Forest Way Phase 2 with sanitary Sewer and municipal Water. There was discussion on 

adding municipal sewer and water for part of this Red Forest Way area. City made a 

Comprehensive plan amendment to allow MUSA connections for part of the Red Forest Way 

as part of the emerging suburban edge designation. This was submitted to Met Council and 

was met with immediate pushback. There was Met Council Staff review, and community 

development committee recommended it presented a significant departure from system plans 

that require emerging suburban edge that it doesn’t meet 3 units per acre requirement. The 

Met Council was going to require the City to force us to modify our PDA plan to require 

density. All political avenues have been exhausted and it is clear the Met Council will deny 

the application. 

• At this point, Council can let the process play out, or the City can withdrawal the action and 

let the process end.  

• In summary, Met Council is saying if you change your density requirement then we will 

consider your request, but still no guarantee that they will approve the sewer and water.  

17



Minutes of the City Council Meeting  April 11, 2024 

P a g e  | 7 

• Mark Houge, North Oaks Company, would like the application withdrawn because the Met 

Council has been unwilling to hear our arguments. They have said yes 2 times previously that 

is not a substantial departure, with St. Paul Regional water and conservation area. Met 

Council is now saying it is a substantial departure and would require more density. North 

Oaks Company and City would both like to withdrawal at this point, and leave the ability to 

reapply with a different request that would satisfy their requirement.  The Company does 

plan to come back and ask City to reapply with Met Council with: 3 less lots in Red Forest 

Way on sewer, count the 14 Villas of Wilkinson Lake lots, and taking out the 45 acres of the 

Hill owned properties. With these adjustments, the proposal should meet the density 

requirements. If resubmit, also may be able to get White Bear Water and fire hydrants on the 

east side of North Oaks.  

• The new application would be a mix of septic and sewer with the exact same density.  

• The Council can withdrawal the request, or request Met council to table it. 

• Houge stated that most lots in Red Forest Way can still use septic and water, but there are a 

few that would need alternate arrangements. 

 

MOTION by Shah, seconded by Azman, to approve Resolution 1518 to withdrawal the 

request to Met Council. Motion carried 4-1, Watson Nay.  

 

10. COUNCIL MEMBER REPORTS  

• Councilor Azman  and Administrator Kress stated the Fire Board meeting asked if our 

Council was in favor of one City doing the bonding with other Cities paying into it, or each 

City do their own funding.  Estimated the total cost minus state portion is 17 million, and the  

City has budgeted accordingly in the capital fund.  There is cost savings by 1 City doing it. 

Shah in favor of cost savings. Shoreview, Arden Hills and North Oaks would all be in this.  

Arden Hills has expressed desire to have their own bond.   Fire Relief Association is talking 

about moving to PARA, this would dissolve the need for the Association.  

• Councilor Shah noted since the governance model was voted down in Fire Board, a 

consultant will look at other options.  She also encourages families to get out and enjoy earth 

day and take advantage of the City free seedling program.  

• Councilor Shuman attended the VLAWMO meetings which continues to stress the 

importance of improving quality of Pleasant Lake quality.  Would like to meet again to 

discuss license plate recognition program with task force and NOHOA to ensure aligned with 

verbiage. Would then like to bring it to the next Council meeting.  

• Councilor Watson would like to get meeting scheduled with Deputy Rammacher and then 

bring it to Council. Watson would like Mark Houge to summarize their proposed changes for 

Red Forest and circulate to Council, and would like to minimize any interaction with Met 

Council.  On the White Bear MOU, would like to share with residents what is in the 

agreement and how it may impact residents. There are methods to conserve water that can be 

put in place. Watson and Cremons will put together resident communications as reach 

transition point to the new contract. Kress noted City will need to put in 9 gate valves along 

exterior of the City in which the water can be shut off, and for use in reading meters.  

• Mayor Wolter reminded residents of the brush pick up late May. She thanked Attorney 

Nason for keeping the City up to date on the legislative matters, and also encouraged 

residents to call their representatives if do not agree with the content of the bills taking away 

local authority for zoning matters.  

18



Minutes of the City Council Meeting  April 11, 2024 

P a g e  | 8 

 

11. CITY ADMINISTRATOR REPORTS 

Administrator Kress mentioned they will bring to subcommittee the current animal license 

ordinance to determine if prudent to consider: 1) remove requirement for licensing pets every 1 – 

3 years based on rabies vaccination date and putting this responsibility back on homeowners, 2) 

moving to a 1-time license pet system, or 3) look at modeling it off of Shoreview animal 

Ordinance.  

 

12. CITY ATTORNEY REPORTS  

None. 

 

13. MISCELLANEOUS  

13a. City Forester Report 

 

City Forester January reports for January 2024 and February 2024 were included in the packet. 

 

14. ADJOURNMENT 

MOTION by Watson, seconded by Azman, to adjourn the meeting at 9:55 p.m. Motion 

carried unanimously by roll call. 

 

 

____________________________   _____________________________ 

Kevin Kress, City Administrator  Krista Wolter, Mayor  

 

Date approved___________ 

 

19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



PUBLIC SAFETY REPORT
Deputy Matt 651-448-1890

Matt.lassegard@co.ramsey.mn.us

o 179 CALLS FOR SERVICE
 NOTABLE 

 Suspicious White 1994 Ford Econoline van (FJE713) States he is 
conducting research.  Call if in neighborhood. Been warned.  

 3 Animal complaints. 1 dog bite
 PPV’s at Spring Farm, South Deep Lake Road, Black Oak Road
 7 groups of children fishing. Most had a North Oaks kid in the 

group.
 2 Solicitor calls. 
 28 Traffic Stops

o SAFETY AND SECURITY
 WALKING. Left side of the road with reflective vest and flashlight.
 SOLICITING SEASON.  No soliciting allowed in North Oaks. City 

does not give permits.  Please call 911 when they are seen. 
 DO NOT CALL DEPUTY MATT FOR IMMEDIATE ISSUES.  I am always 

available to talk and help fix problems. 

40



 

 

PLANNING REPORT  

 

TO:  North Oaks City Council 
 
FROM: Kendra Lindahl, City Planner 

Kevin Kress, City Administrator 
Bridget McCauley Nason, City Attorney 
Michael Nielson, City Engineer 

 
DATE:  May 3, 2024 
 
RE: Conditional Use Permit for Building Height in Excess of 35 feet and Driveway 

Setback Variance at 8 Sherwood Trail 
 

Date Application Submitted   January 25, 2024 

Date Application Determined Complete: February 2, 2024 

Planning Commission Meeting Date:  February 29, 2024 

60-day Review Date:    March 25, 2024 

Planning Commission Meeting Date:  March 28, 2024 

Planning Commission Meeting Date:  April 25, 2024 

City Council Meeting Date:   May 9, 2024 

120-day Review Date:   May 24, 2024 

 

REQUEST 

Scott Hockert of Hanson Builders has requested approval of a conditional use permit (CUP) to 
allow the construction of a new home at 8 Sherwood Trail to be 44.2 feet in height where 35 feet 
in is the maximum height permitted in the City Code and a variance to allow an 11-foot setback 
from the wetland and a 25-foot setback from the side lot line where 30 feet is required for both. 
The applicant’s narrative is attached, as well as building elevations, a survey and a site plan for 
the proposed structure. 

  

41



 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION REVIEW 

The Planning Commission opened the public hearing for the CUP request and continued it to 
the March 28th meeting so that it could be reviewed with the variance application.  

The Planning Commission reviewed this item at the March 28th meeting. The Commission 
discussed the building height conditional use permit and driveway setback variance. The 
Commission continued the item to  the April 25th Planning Commission meeting so the full 
Commission could be present. The Commission asked the applicant to provide alternatives for 
how the driveway could serve a home in the location shown.  

Following the meeting, the applicant provided updated plans with two development options 
showing the two required 5,000 square foot septic sites, however, the secondary septic site 
does not meet setback requirements and would need to be revised or a variance would be 
required:  

• Option 1: shows the application reviewed last month. This is a 12-foot wide driveway 
with a variance to allow a 25-foot setback from the west property line where 30 feet is 
required and an 11-foot setback from wetland #9 where 30 feet is required.  

• Option 2: shows a new concept. This is a 10-foot wide driveway with a variance to allow 
a 12-foot setback from the wetland where 30 feet is required.  

At the April 25, 2025 meeting, the Commission: 

1. Voted 4-2 to recommend approval of Variance – Option 1, based on the findings and 
conditions in the staff report. 

2. Voted 6-0 to recommend denial of Variance – Option 2 based on the findings in the staff 
report. 

3. Voted 6-0 to recommend approval of the conditional use permit with the condition that the 
building should have a 3-foot minimum elevation difference from the basement finished floor 
elevation to the groundwater elevation, as determined by a geotechnical engineer by a soils 
investigation. 

On May 1, 2024, the applicant submitted a plan that shows a 10-foot driveway resulting in a 25-foot 
setback from the property line and a 13-foot setback from the wetland where 30 feet is required 
(updated Option 1). The plans also show two 5,000 sq. ft. septic sites that meet setback requirements. 
This new plan is attached.   

42



 

 

BACKGROUND 

The site is currently undeveloped. The property 
is in the East Preserve (Nord) development. 
Final approval for thissubdivision was granted in 
2022. 

Zoning and Land Use  

The property is guided Low Density residential 
and is zoned Residential Single Family – 
Medium Density (RSM-PUD). Homes greater 
than 35 feet in height are subject to the 
conditional use permit (CUP) standards and 
process in Section 151.051(D.1) (conditional 
uses), Section 151.076 (CUP review criteria) and Section 151.079 (CUP procedure) of the 
Zoning Code, as detailed in the East Oaks PDA.  

The 2.6-acre property is located along Sherwood Trail, east of the intersection of Sherwood 
Trail and Sherwood Road (County Road 4).  

PLANNING ANALYSIS  

Building Height 

The applicant is requesting a CUP to allow the southern (rear) elevation of the proposed home 
to exceed 35 feet in height. Elevations provided by the applicant show the proposed home to be 
44.2 feet in height along the side and rear facades. The front facade of the home is 34.9 feet in 
height. Building height is defined as the vertical distance from grade to the top ridge of the 
highest roof surface in Section 151.005 of the Zoning Code. 

Building Setbacks  

The proposed single-family home exceeds the 30-foot minimum setback requirements at all 
property lines and street easements. The front elevation is set back 272.9 feet from the roadway 
easement. The side elevations are 50.5 feet from the east property line and 55.8 feet from the 
west property line. The rear elevation is setback more than 200 feet from the rear property line. 
The building complies with the setback requirements.  

  

Figure 1 - Subject Parcel 

43



 

 

Size 

The applicant has provided a FAR worksheet showing 8.25% FAR. Plans must be in 
compliance with the maximum 12% FAR requirement at the time of review by the Building 
Official. 

Wetlands 

There are two wetlands on the site. The Code requires a 30-foot setback from the wetlands and 
VLAWMO  encourages a 30-foot wetland buffer. The Code also requires that driveways be 30-
feet from the property line. A setback variance is required to construct the driveway at the 
proposed location.  

The applicant has submitted a letter dated April 12th from VLAWMO stating that they would 
support the reduced buffer on either option if the developer used buffer averaging. However, 
regardless of VLAWMO’s position on the buffer policy, the City Code requires the driveway to 
be set back 30 feet from the wetland.  

The approved plans for the Nord development showed 
the home site at the front of the lot, which would have 
eliminated the need for the driveway variance but would 
have required a very steep driveway. It is the applicant’s 
responsibility to show that the practical difficulties exist, 
and that the mandatory criteria for issuance of a variance 
are met before the City Council can approve the required 
variance. Without a variance from the wetland and side 
lot line setback requirements, the house cannot be 
constructed as proposed. 

Septic 

Section 51.01 of the City Code requires the plans to 
show the location of two septic systems, each 5,000 sq. 
ft. in size, which complies with setbacks and will be 
protected during construction.  

The plans submitted on May 1, 2024 (updated Option 1) 
show the two 5,000 sq. ft. septic sites meeting setback 
requirements. Supporting documentation from a licensed SSTS professional is required prior to 
issuance of a building permit.  

Figure 2- preliminary plans 

44



 

 

Trees 

At the February Planning Commission, the Commission asked for more information about the 
tree removal on site. City Administrator Kress noted that the tree removal was part of the 
subdivision approval and is complete. At the request of the Commission, the applicant has 
provided information from NOHOA about the required plantings. 

Building Height CUP 

To allow a conditional use permit for a home greater than 35 feet in height, Section 151.05(D.7) 
of the Zoning Code requires that the following criteria be considered: 

1. The front elevation of the building does not exceed 35 feet in height at any point; 
 
The proposed front elevation does not exceed 35 feet at any point. 
 

2. The building height at any other elevation does not exceed 45 feet; 
 
The building height at the rear and side elevations does not exceed 45 feet. 
 

3. The environmental and topographical conditions of the lot prior to building development are 
naturally suited to the design of a building with an egress or walkout level; 
 
Based on review of the plans, topography of the site and Ramsey County GIS, the proposed 
home and walkout level appear conducive to the site’s natural layout in this location. Prior to 
construction, the City will review all erosion control measures to ensure that the construction 
project does not adversely affect the surrounding environment. The City Engineer will make 
periodic site visits during construction to ensure all erosion control measures are fully 
complied with. 
 

4. Buildings shall be limited to a basement and 2 full stories. Finished areas within the roof 
structure will be considered a full story;  

 
The proposed home is two full stories with a basement walkout.  

 
5. Any time the side or rear elevations of a building exceeds 35 feet in height within 50 feet of 

adjacent lot lines, the building line shall be setback an additional 2 feet from the adjacent 
setback line for each foot in height above 35 feet; and 

 
The home has been designed to meet the 50-foot setback. 

45



 

 

 
6. Section 151.083 is complied with. 
 

The applicant has complied with the fees associated with Section 151.083. 

In addition to the standards identified for the specific CUP request, the City must also review the 
conditional use permit request against the standards in Section 151.076 of the City Code. Staff 
has reviewed the request against those standards: 

1. Relationship of the proposed conditional use to the Comprehensive Plan; 
 
The proposed use is consistent with the uses anticipated in the Comprehensive Plan and 
the permitted uses in the single family zoning district. 
 

2. The nature of the land and adjacent land or building where the use is to be located; 
 
The use is consistent with the surrounding land uses. 
 

3. Whether the use will in any way depreciate the area in which it is proposed; 
 
The proposed single-family should not negatively impact adjacent property values. 
 

4. The effect upon traffic into and from the land and on adjoining roads, streets, and highways; 
 
The proposed use will not create a traffic impact. 

 
5. Whether the use would disrupt the reasonable use and enjoyment of other land in the 

neighborhood; 
 
The proposed single-family home use will not cause a negative impact to the use and 
enjoyment of other land in the neighborhood. 

 
6. Whether adequate utilities, roads, streets, and other facilities exist or will be available in the 

near future; 
 
There are adequate utilities, roads, streets, and other facilities available to the property.  

 
7. Whether the proposed conditional use conforms to all of the provisions of this chapter;  

 
The proposed request is compliant with the City’s zoning code. 

46



 

 

 
8. The effect up natural drainage patterns onto and from the site; 

Finished grading will work with existing drainage patterns.  

7. Whether the proposed use will be detrimental to or endanger the public health, safety, 
comfort, convenience or general welfare of the neighborhood or the city;  
 
The use as proposed will not be detrimental to or endanger the public health, safety, 
comfort, convenience or general welfare of the neighborhood or the city; 

 
9. Whether the proposed use would create additional requirements at public cost for public 

facilities and services and whether or not the use will be detrimental to the economic welfare 
of the neighborhood or city; and  
 
As proposed, the use will not create additional requirements at public cost for public facilities 
and services and will not be detrimental to the economic welfare of the neighborhood or city. 

 
10. Whether the proposed use is environmentally sound and will not involve uses, activities, 

processes, materials, equipment, and conditions of operation that will be detrimental to any 
persons, land, or the general welfare because of excessive production of traffic, noise, 
smoke, fumes, wastes, toxins, glare, or orders. 
 
Beyond initial construction activity, and based on erosion control requirements, the proposed 
residential use and grading activity will not be detrimental to the environment or surrounding area. 
 
 

Driveway Setback Variance  
 
At the Planning Commission’s request, the applicant has provided two concepts for the 
driveway location. Both alternatives have significant variance requests. It is difficult to evaluate a 
variance request for two different options because the language in the Code asks if it is the 
minimum action necessary and clearly there are alternatives.  
 

  

47



 

 

Option 1 (the one submitted for review and approval): 
1. A 12-foot wide driveway (at the narrowest point) 
2. A variance for a 25-foot setback from the west property line where 30 feet is required 

(83% of the required setback) 
3. A variance for an 11-foot setback from Wetland #9 where 30 feet is required by Section 

151.050(F)(1) of the City Code (37% of the required setback) 
4. Shows two 5,000 sq. ft. septic sites but the secondary site does not meet the minimum 

setback of 30 feet from structures, wetlands and property lines 
5. The reduced setback results in 470 sq. ft. of wetland buffer impact and the creation of 

555 sq. ft. of new buffer.  
 
Option 2: 

1. A 10-foot wide driveway (at the narrowest point) 
2. A variance for a 25-foot setback from the west property line where 30 feet is required 

(83% of the required setback) 
3. A variance for a 12-foot setback from Wetland #9 and Wetland #7 where 30 feet is 

required by Section 151.050(F)(1) of the City Code (40% of the required setback on 
each wetland) 

4. Shows two 5,000 sq. ft. septic sites but the secondary site does not meet the minimum 
setback of 30 feet from structures, wetlands and property lines 

5. The reduced setback results in 360 sq. ft. of wetland buffer impact and the creation of 
386 sq. ft. of new buffer.  

 
Option 1 requires less of a variance when the setback variation from the required side yard 
setback and wetland setback is evaluated but it impacts more sq. ft. of buffer than Option 2 
according to the applicant’s plan.  
 
This lot was platted as part of the Nord subdivision. That subdivision plan showed building pads 
for all of the lots up near the street with septic systems in the rear yard, however, several of the 
adjacent lots did push the home to the back of the lot. They were able to have that flexibility 
because they do not have the wetlands in the middle of the lot like 8 Sherwood. 
 
The variance being requested is so that the builder can move the building pad to the back of the 
lot to accommodate a home with a walkout. The Commission asked the applicant to provide two 
options. The City must now consider each option as a separate application and they are 
evaluated below: 
 

48



 

 

Option 1 Variance 
 
Section 151.078 of the Zoning Code requires 
that the following criteria be considered and 
a variance only be granted when it is 
demonstrated that following standards have 
all been met: 

(1)(a) Their strict enforcement would 
cause practical difficulties because of 
circumstances unique to the individual 
land under consideration, and the 
variances shall be granted only when it is 
demonstrated that the actions will be in 
keeping with the spirit and intent of this 
chapter.  
 
The applicant argues that they bought 
the lot, entered into a purchase 
agreement with a buyer and the house 
they want to build does not fit on the front 
building pad. Hanson Builders argues 
that this creates a practical difficulty 
because they cannot build a home like the others they are building in the neighborhood 
without the driveway variance and placing this house up by the street will look out of 
character with the other homes in the neighborhood. 
 
The Council could find that there is no practical difficulty and the landowner simply needs to 
develop a home plan that fits the lot without the need for a variance. The final plans/plat for Red 
Forest Way South Phase 1 showed the house pad on the front of the lot. The approvals for the 
subdivision were based on the approved plans and due diligence as part of the land purchase 
should have identified this home site. The City Code prohibits the creation of parcels that are 
unbuildable, and the developer showed a driveway and home site that they deemed buildable when 
the lot was created.  
 
b) PRACTICAL DIFFICULTIES means the land in question cannot be put to a reasonable 
use if used under conditions allowed by the official controls, the plight of the land owner is 
due to circumstances unique to the land in question which were not created by the land 
owner, and the variance, if granted, will not alter the essential character of the locality.  
 

Figure 3-Option 1 

49



 

 

Hanson Builders has provided a detailed narrative outlining what they believe are the 
practical difficulties that necessitate the variance. They argue that the small building pad in 
the front of the lot is out of character with other homes in the neighborhood and the home 
needs to be behind the wetlands to build the home the buyer wants. They also make the 
argument that that the driveway would be too steep if they built on the house pad in the front 
of the lot. The City Engineer has reviewed the plans and concurs that the originally 
approved home site would require a driveway grade in excess of 10% in order to meet the 
code requirements for the low floor elevation of the home and that is in excess of standard 
practice. 
 
The City Council must evaluate whether or not the original building pad proposed by The 
North Oaks Company and approved by the City is a reasonable location or whether the 
location is not feasible and creates a practical difficulty. The Council could agree with 
Hanson Builders that the house they designed does not fit on this lot, but find that is not a 
practical difficulty, because a different home could be designed to work with the site 
conditions and not require a variance. The Council could find that while not ideal, a driveway 
with a grade in excess of 10% could be constructed and such driveways do exist in the 
region. 
 
(c) Economic considerations alone shall not constitute an undue hardship if reasonable use 
for the land exists under the terms of this chapter.  
 
The variance request is not driven solely by economic considerations, but the Council must 
first answer the question of whether a practical difficulty exists that requires the home to be 
built on the rear of the lot triggering the need for the variance from the wetland setbacks for 
the new driveway. 
 
The Council could find that if there is a practical difficulty and that it is not driven entirely be 
economic considerations. Alternatively, the Council could find that there is no practical 
difficulty and that the variance is driven by economic considerations so the applicant can 
build a larger home in the rear of the lot.  
 
(d) A variance may not be granted for any use that is not permitted under this chapter for 
land in the zone where the affected person’s land is located.  
 
The variance would not allow a use that is not permitted under this chapter.  
 
(2) Subject to the above, a variance may be granted only in the event that all of the following 
circumstances exist:  
 

50



 

 

(a) Unique circumstances apply to the which do not generally apply to other land in the 
same zone or vicinity, and result from lot size or shape, topography, or other circumstances 
over which the owners of the land have no control;  
 
The two wetlands in the center of the lot are unique to this lot. The applicant’s narrative 
argues that there are unique circumstances because placing the home near the street would 
be out of character with the other homes in the neighborhood and to avoid the wetlands the 
home needs to be moved to the rear of the lot if a walkout is to be built. If the home is 
moved to the back of the lot the driveway cannot be built without driveway variances. 
 
However, the Council could find that the approved plans showed the home site on the front 
of the lot and a home could be built there but would require a steep driveway grade and/or a 
smaller house than others in the neighborhood. The City of North Oaks has many lots with 
wetlands, and this is not a unique circumstance.  
 
(b) The proposed uses is reasonable;  
 
The applicant states that the proposed variance is reasonable because the building pad at 
the front of the site where originally approved is not feasible for the home they wish to build. 
The proposed home is reasonable as it is a comparable size and style as the adjacent 
homes. 
 
The Council could find that in North Oaks homes should be built to the particular site 
conditions and expecting every lot to support every home type is not reasonable. The parcel 
has a buildable home site as approved with the plat and a smaller home with a steep 
driveway grade could be built in that location. 
 
(c) That the unique circumstances do not result from the actions of the applicant; 
 
Hanson Builders was not involved in the original platting or lot layouts of this development 
and are simply trying to work with the constraints for this lot. 
 
Alternatively, the Council could find that the owner had a responsibility to understand the 
site constraints before purchasing the lot and designing the home, circumstances of the lot 
are not unique to the lot and the builder has alternatives to build on this vacant lot. 
 
(d) That granting the variance requested will not confer on the applicant any special privilege 
that is denied by this chapter to other lands, structures, or buildings in the same district;  
 

51



 

 

The Council could find that the site constraints require the home to be placed on the rear of 
the lot, which creates the need for the driveway setback variance and granting the variance 
does not grant special privileges.  
 
Alternatively, the Council could find that the developer provided a building pad site at the 
front of the lot to avoid this exact circumstance and granting the variance would confer 
special privileges to the applicant.  
 
(e) That the Variance requested is the minimum variance which would alleviate the practical 
difficulties;  
 
The applicant argues that the variance is the minimum action needed to alleviate the 
practical difficulties on site because the house they want to build won’t fit on the approved 
building pad site and that a house that could fit would be out of character with the 
neighborhood. The variance is the minimum action necessary to allow the builder to build 
the selected home plan on this lot. 
 
Alternatively, the Council could find that the variance is not the minimum action necessary 
as the driveway width could be reduced from 12 feet to 10 feet to reduce the variance. The 
Council could find that there is no practical difficulty because the building pad site as 
approved can be developed but simply requires the builder to develop a smaller house plan 
that works with the existing site. 
 
 (f) The proposed variance will not impair an adequate supply of light and air to adjacent 
land, or substantially increase the congestion of the roads and streets, or increase the 
danger of fire, or endanger the public safety, or substantially diminish or impair property 
values within the neighborhood; and  
 
The proposed variance will not impair an adequate supply of light and air to adjacent land, 
or substantially increase the congestion of the roads and streets, or increase the danger of 
fire, or endanger the public safety, or substantially diminish or impair property values within 
the neighborhood. 
 
(g) At no time after the land became nonconforming was the property under common 
ownership with contiguous land, the combination of which could have been used to reduce 
or avoid the nonconformity of the land.  
 
N/A 

 

52



 

 

Option 2  
 
Section 151.078 of the Zoning Code 
requires that the following criteria be 
considered and a variance only be 
granted when it is demonstrated that 
following standards have all been met: 
 
(1)(a) Their strict enforcement would 
cause practical difficulties because of 
circumstances unique to the individual 
land under consideration, and the 
variances shall be granted only when it is 
demonstrated that the actions will be in 
keeping with the spirit and intent of this 
chapter.  
 
The applicant argues that they bought 
the lot, entered into a purchase 
agreement with a buyer and the house 
they want to build does not fit on the front 
building pad. Hanson Builders argues 
that this creates a practical difficulty 
because they cannot build a home like the others they are building in the neighborhood without the 
driveway variance and placing this house up by the street will look out of character with the other 
homes in the neighborhood. 
 
The Council could find the there is no practical difficulty, and the landowner simply needs to 
develop a home plan that fits the lot without the need for a variance. The final plans/plat for 
Red Forest Way South Phase 1 showed the house pad on the front of the lot. The approvals 
for the subdivision were based on the approved plans and due diligence as part of the land 
purchase should have identified this home site. The City Code prohibits the creation of 
parcels that are unbuildable and the developer showed a driveway and home site that they 
deemed buildable when the lot was created. Furthermore, there is an alternative (Option 1) 
with less of a variance required. 
 
b) PRACTICAL DIFFICULTIES means the land in question cannot be put to a reasonable use if 
used under conditions allowed by the official controls, the plight of the land owner is due to 
circumstances unique to the land in question which were not created by the land owner, and the 
variance, if granted, will not alter the essential character of the locality.  

Figure 4-Option 2 

53



 

 

 
Hanson Builders has provided a detailed narrative outlining what they believe are the practical 
difficulties that necessitate the variance. They argue that the small building pad in the front of the lot 
is out of character with other homes in the neighborhood and the home needs to be behind the 
wetlands to build the home the buyer wants. They also make the argument that that the driveway 
would be too steep if they built on the house pad in the front of the lot. The City Engineer has 
reviewed the plans and concurs that the originally approved home site would require a driveway 
grade in excess of 10% in order to meet the code requirements for the low floor elevation of the 
home and that is in excess of standard practice. 
 
The City Council must evaluate whether or not the original building pad proposed by The North 
Oaks Company and approved by the City is a reasonable location or whether the location is not 
feasible and creates a practical difficulty. The Council could agree with Hanson Builders that the 
house they designed does not fit on this lot, but find that is not a practical difficulty, because a 
different home could be designed to work with the site conditions and not require a variance. The 
Council could find that while not ideal, a driveway with a grade in excess of 10% could be 
constructed and such driveways do exist in the region. Or the Council could find that a driveway 
could be located in a different location with less of a variance required. 
 
(c) Economic considerations alone shall not constitute an undue hardship if reasonable use for the 
land exists under the terms of this chapter.  
 
The variance request is not driven solely by economic considerations, but the Council must first 
answer the question of whether a practical difficulty exists that requires the home to be built on the 
rear of the lot triggering the need for the variance from the wetland setbacks for the new driveway. 
 
The Council could find that if there is a practical difficulty and that it is not driven entirely be 
economic considerations. Alternatively, the Council could find that there is no practical difficulty, and 
that the variance is driven by economic considerations so the applicant can build a larger home in 
the rear of the lot.  
 
(d) A variance may not be granted for any use that is not permitted under this chapter for land in the 
zone where the affected person’s land is located.  
 
The variance would not allow a use that is not permitted under this chapter.  
 
(2) Subject to the above, a variance may be granted only in the event that all of the following 
circumstances exist:  
 

54



 

 

(a) Unique circumstances apply to the which do not generally apply to other land in the same zone 
or vicinity, and result from lot size or shape, topography, or other circumstances over which the 
owners of the land have no control;  
 
The two wetlands in the center of the lot are unique to this lot. The applicant’s narrative argues that 
there are unique circumstances because placing the home near the street would be out of character 
with the other homes in the neighborhood and to avoid the wetlands the home needs to be moved 
to the rear of the lot if a walkout is to be built. If the home is moved to the back of the lot the 
driveway cannot be built without driveway variances. 
 
However, the Council could find that the approved plans showed the home site on the front of the 
lot and a home could be built there but would require a steep driveway grade and/or a smaller 
house than others in the neighborhood. The City of North Oaks has many lots with wetlands and 
this is not a unique circumstance. The Council could also find that the landowner has options for a 
driveway that would result in less of a variance. 
 
(b) The proposed uses is reasonable;  
 
The applicant states that the proposed variance is reasonable because the building pad at the front 
of the site where originally approved is not feasible for the home they wish to build. The proposed 
home is reasonable as it is a comparable size and style as the adjacent homes. 
 
The Council could find that in North Oaks homes should be built to the particular site conditions and 
expecting every lot to support every home type is not reasonable. The parcel has a buildable home 
site as approved with the plat and a smaller home with a steep driveway grade could be built in that 
location. Additionally, there is another driveway location that would require less of a variance. 
 
(c) That the unique circumstances do not result from the actions of the applicant; 
 
Hanson Builders was not involved in the original platting or lot layouts of this development and are 
simply trying to work with the constraints for this lot. 
 
Alternatively, the Council could find that the owner had a responsibility to understand the site 
constraints before purchasing the lot and designing the home, circumstances of the lot are not 
unique to the lot and the builder has alternatives to build on this vacant lot and options to locate the 
driveway to the west with less of a variance required. 
 
(d) That granting the variance requested will not confer on the applicant any special privilege that is 
denied by this chapter to other lands, structures, or buildings in the same district;  
 

55



 

 

The Council could find that the site constraints require the home to be placed on the rear of the lot, 
which creates the need for the driveway setback variance and granting the variance does not grant 
special privileges.  
 
Alternatively, the Council could find that the developer provided a building pad site at the front of the 
lot to avoid this exact circumstance and granting the variance would confer special privileges to the 
applicant.  
 
(e) That the Variance requested is the minimum variance which would alleviate the practical 
difficulties;  
 
The applicant argues that the variance is the minimum action needed to alleviate the practical 
difficulties on site because the house they want to build won’t fit on the approved building pad site 
and that a house that could fit would be out of character with the neighborhood. The variance is the 
minimum action necessary to allow the builder to build the selected home plan on this lot. 
 
The Council could find that there is no practical difficulty because the building pad site as approved 
can be developed but simply requires the builder to develop a smaller house plan that works with 
the existing site. The Council could also find that a driveway variance is required but the driveway 
could be moved to the west and result in less of a variance.  
 
 (f) The proposed variance will not impair an adequate supply of light and air to adjacent land, or 
substantially increase the congestion of the roads and streets, or increase the danger of fire, or 
endanger the public safety, or substantially diminish or impair property values within the 
neighborhood; and  
 
The proposed variance will not impair an adequate supply of light and air to adjacent land, or 
substantially increase the congestion of the roads and streets, or increase the danger of fire, or 
endanger the public safety, or substantially diminish or impair property values within the 
neighborhood. 
 
(g) At no time after the land became nonconforming was the property under common ownership 
with contiguous land, the combination of which could have been used to reduce or avoid the 
nonconformity of the land.  
 
N/A 

 

 

56



 

 

Attached for reference: 

 Exhibit A: Location Map 

 Exhibit B: Approved Nord Plan 

Exhibit C: Applicant Narrative dated April 22, 2024 

Exhibit D: Site Plan Options 1 and 2 

Exhibit E: REVISED Site Plan received on May 1, 2024 (Option 1 updated) 

Exhibit F: Building floor plans and elevations dated January 25, 2024 

Exhibit G: FAR Worksheet 

Exhibit H: City Engineer memos dated February 14, 2024,  March 26, 2024 and 
April 18, 2024 

Exhibit I:  VLAWMO letter dated March 9, 2023 and April 12, 2024 

Exhibit J: VLAWMO wetland buffer basics 

Exhibit K: Email from NOHOA dated March 4, 2024 

Exhibit L: Email from Amanda Guanzini 

Exhibit M: Resolution Approving CUP 

Exhibit N: Resolution Approving Variance (option 1) 

 
SUMMARY 
 
Staff finds that applicant does comply with conditional use permit standards for building height in 
excess of 35 feet as outlined in the staff report.  However, the conditional use permit is tied to 
the variance request, because without the driveway variance the home could not be built as 
proposed. 
 

  

57



 

 

 
ACTION 

The Council is required to take action the CUP and variance applications. If the Council finds 
that the grounds for approving the CUP or variances are not met, the Council must deny the 
same. If the Council finds that the grounds for approval of the CUP and variances have been 
met, the Council may approve the requested Conditional Use Permit and variances.  
 
Attachments: 
 

1. Resolution approving Conditional Use Permit 
2. Resolution Approving Variances 

 

58



Map Ramsey

Personal Property

Tax Parcels

Cities

County Offices

2/6/2024, 12:05:50 PM

0 0.4 0.80.2 mi

0 0.6 1.20.3 km

1:16,000

Ramsey County
Ramsey County MN

59



60

LDeWalt
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT B



Variance Request 
8 Sherwood Trail, Tract G 
North Oaks, MN 
 
Descrip0on of Variance Requested: 
 
Hanson Builders (license BC0004568) on behalf of itself and Mr. and Mrs. Becker (future homeowners for 
this property), are respecHully requesJng a variance to allow a driveway upon a porJon of the 30-foot 
buffer setback from a wetland area based upon pracJcal difficulJes caused by the features of the 
property.  The project will be completed according to one of the two proposed layouts. 
 
Descrip0on of the Property and the Need for a Variance: 
 
The property is located at 8 Sherwood Trail and is one of several lots in a single-family residenJal 
development with large lots and homes set far back from the road.  The property includes two wetlands 
in the center and front 1/3 of the lot where a home would ordinarily be constructed.  The property is 
narrow in the front and expands to be wider in the back.  The front 1/3 of this lot is narrower than the 
front areas of other properJes in the neighborhood.  The property also includes a significant grade 
change and rising up from the street.   
 
Due to the grade change, a home constructed in the front 1/3 of the property would have a driveway 
with an average slope of 13% and a maximum slope over 18%.  This is a dangerous feature, parJcularly 
during Minnesota winters.  It is also uncharacterisJcally steep for the neighborhood and would be a 
bulky visual feature from the road.  The home would also be placed much closer to the road than others 
in the neighborhood and will disrupt the front yard setback established by the homes immediately next 
to the property.   
 
The wetlands have a 30’ buffer area that prevents placing the driveway through the center of the lot and, 
because the front of the lot is narrow, a driveway cannot be built outside the wetland buffer without 
encroaching into the side yard setback.  GranJng this variance will allow the home to be constructed in a 
manner consistent with the neighborhood, preserve natural views and privacy among neighbors, and 
not be harmful to the wetlands.   
 
Specific Loca0on of the Variance request: 
 
We have two proposals for the driveway locaJon.  We iniJally worked with the city planner to create 
Proposal #1, which includes a 12’ wide driveway running along the western edge of the wetland #9 
buffer (the westernmost of the two wetlands) and the western property line.  This proposal meets the 
25’ side yard setback and provides an 11’ buffer between the driveway and wetland #9.  Vadnais Lake 
Area Water Management OrganizaJon (“VLAWMO”), the enJty with technical experJse over wetlands in 
the City, expressed no concerns with the 11’ buffer in Proposal #1 in its 3/20/24 leeer.   
 
Afer discussion at its meeJng on 3/28/24, the planning commission members wanted to see an 
addiJonal opJon that would place the proposed driveway between the two wetlands in order to 
increase privacy along the lot line.  In response, we prepared Proposal #2, which provides a larger 
wetland buffer average of 12’ and keeps the driveway far outside the side yard setback areas.  The 
driveway width is reduced to 10’ in the area between the wetlands.  As with Proposal #1, VLAWMO has 
no concern about the wetland buffer average in its leeer dated 4/12/24 and finds both proposals to be 

Received 4/22/24

61



acceptable in light of its water management policies.  We ask the City to adopt VLAWMO’s determinaJon 
that the variance provides enough buffer space to protect the wetlands. 
 
Reasoning for the Variance Request.  We will address the code sec0on 151.078 Variances and Appeals, 
specifically subsec0on (E,2): 
 

(a) Unique circumstances apply to the which do not generally apply to other land in the same 
zone or vicinity, and result from lot size shape, topography, or other circumstances over 
which the owners of the land have no control. 

 
The locaJon of the two small wetlands is a unique condiJon that does not exist on any other lot in this 
development.  While wetlands are not uncommon in this area, they are rarely located in the center-front 
of a buildable residenJal lot.  In this instance, the locaJon, size, and shape of the wetlands prevent 
construcJon in the middle of the lot, where it would normally occur, and requires the home to be moved 
either forward into the typical front yard area or all the way behind the wetlands.   
 
In this case, the challenges posed by the wetlands are exacerbated by the topography of the property 
and the fact that the front 1/3 of the lot is narrower than other lots in the area, which causes the side 
yard setback to have a greater impact on the property as compared to other lots in the surrounding area.  
This combinaJon of condiJons does not exist on the other properJes in the area and, as discussed more 
in secJon (b) below, the other homes in the neighborhood would all require at least one setback 
variance place them on the front porJon of this lot.  Not only are these characterisJcs unique to this 
property and beyond the applicant’s control, but they prohibit the reasonable use of the property.  

 
AddiJonally, the significant elevaJon change from the road makes it unsafe to construct a home in the 
front of the property because it would result in an average driveway slope in excess of the City’s 
maximum guideline of 10% (see below) and what we, in our professional judgement, believe to be safe.  

 
The calculaJon is straighHorward.  The street elevaJon is 914.0 and complying with the requirement to 
stay within exisJng grade and the wetland rules (requiring the home to be 3’ above the high-water line) 
results in a garage floor at 920.7 and over a distance of 48’ from the front of the garage to the street 
results in an average driveway slope of 13.8%.  Importantly, a driveway cannot be sloped uniformly from 
the low point to the high point, and here the steepest por<on of the driveway will be sloped upwards of 
18.7%!  This creates an unsafe condiJon year-round because it limits visibility in an out of the driveway, 
but this will be parJcularly dangerous during icy Minnesota winters.  This also requires a slope in the 
front yard that increases the potenJal for erosion and runoff into the road.   

 
GranJng the variance will allow the home to be located in the rear of the property and will allow a 
driveway to more gradually adjust to the topography.  This will be safer for the property owner, allow 
beeer visibility when entering the street, reduce runoff, and maintain a similar appearance to other 
driveways from the street. 

 
12. A grading plan for each “custom” lot shall be submi:ed with each building permit applica<on.  
Proposed grades around the perimeter of the proposed homes shall meet the requirements of the 
state building code.  Staff recommends that a minimum driveway slope of 3 percent, and a 
maximum of 10 percent.  Details of proposed driveway sec<ons over drainage ditch with 
proposed culverts shall be included in plans for building permit review to ensure grading and 
drainage plan is maintained. 

62



(b) The proposed use is reasonable:  
 

It is reasonable to seek a variance to allow a driveway for this single-family home in this zoning district.  
This property is constrained by the locaJon of two wetlands along with the topography and the available 
front building area is small at only about 65 feet wide and 50 feet deep.   
 
The requested variance is reasonable from the perspecJve of the local watershed agency with technical 
experJse over these wetlands.  VLAWMO has reviewed the proposed variance and both proposed 
driveway layouts.  It has determined that sufficient wetland buffer protecJons will exists to meet the 
requirements of its water management policy and City ordinance requirements.  In arriving at this 
conclusion, VLAWMO notes that the strict buffer requirements can be relaxed when site constraints 
exist, as they do here, and that buffer averaging is an acceptable calculaJon method.   
 
For context, we wanted to see if the other homes in the neighborhood could be built in the front 
building area without encroaching into setback areas so we had engineering place the building footprints 
within front buildable area of the property.  See aeached exhibits for the floor plans of Sherwood 1, 2, 6, 
8, 10, and 14.  All of the neighboring homes needed a setback variance to be constructed in the front 
building area.  The only reasonable locaJon for a home consistent with the caliber of homes in this 
neighborhood is behind the two small wetlands.  
 
GranJng this variance will create a front yard setback that is uniform with the immediate neighbors and 
consistent with the essenJal character of the surrounding area.  The lots on Sherwood are parJcularly 
deep and the homes have large front yard setbacks and it is unreasonable to shoehorn a home into the 
front lot in the neighborhood, parJcularly when the lot is more than 600’ deep and about 180 feet wide 
at the rear for a total of 2.6 acres.  The home immediately to the west (6 Sherwood) is set back roughly 
150’ and the home immediately to the east (10 Sherwood) is set back roughly 300’.  Without a variance, 
this home would be set back only 48 feet from the street; this is out of character with the surrounding 
area.  This will also provide more privacy to the future property owners as well as their neighbors at both 
6 and 10 Sherwood and beeer preserve natural views of the undeveloped porJons of the property 
rather than force those owners to look at the backside of this home.   
 
GranJng the variance will have a beneficial impact on the sepJc system.  Building the home in the front 
area will require an excepJonally long pipe for the sepJc system, which increases the opportunity for a 
pipe failure over Jme.  It is reasonable to build the home behind the wetlands so that a more reasonable 
sized sepJc pipe can be used and there will be more flexibility in siJng the locaJon and ensuring 
adequate sloping without disturbing the wetlands to install sepJc piping.   

 
(c) That the unique circumstances do not result from the ac0ons of the applicant:  

 
Hanson Builders was not involved in the original plalng or lot layouts of this development.  The 
wetlands, topography, and development setbacks were not created by Hanson Builders.  We are trying to 
resolve the issues of the constraints for this lot. 

 
(d) That gran0ng the variance requested will not confer on the applicant any special privilege 

that is denied by this chapter to other lands, structures, or building in the same district: 
 

The requested variance does not provide a special privilege on the applicant to allow the property to be 
developed in a manner that is different from the single-family homes on other properJes within the 

63



district.  Rather, the variance will allow for a typical driveway and enable the property to be developed in 
the same manner as other properJes in the district.   
 
In this context, special privileges would be to allow an increase in FAR or the ability to develop a mulJ-
family building; moving the home back from the front porJon of the lot is not a special privilege.  As 
discussed during the prior planning commission meeJng, several of the homes in Sherwood are 
constructed further into the rear of the lot than iniJally shown on proposed buildings pads at subdivision 
approval.  GranJng this variance does not provide any special privileges not enjoyed by other properJes 
and will encourage development that is consistent with the exisJng character of the neighborhood.   
 

(e) That the requested variance is the minimum variance which would alleviate the prac0cal 
difficul0es: 

 
We are trying to be very sensiJve to the natural environment, the character of the surrounding 
neighborhood, and the ordinance.  We have proposed the minimum amount of variance that will resolve 
the difficulJes of this lot and we believe that Proposal #2 is the lease impacHul.  The minimal nature of 
the variance is shown by:  
 
1. Building a modest driveway and further reducing it to 10’ in the area next to the wetland; 
2. Increasing the total amount of wetland buffer zone to be equal to or greater than the wetland 

buffer zone area in the iniJal proposal, as calculated by the wetland buffer averaging principle; 
3. Understanding that the driveway will not reduce the size of or physically contact the wetlands;  
4. The total amount of buffer area surrounding the two wetlands is increased;  
5. Agreeing to install wetland buffer zone signs around the buffer areas;  
6. Increasing privacy between neighboring properJes; and  
7. EliminaJng the need to construct a dangerously steep driveway. 
 

(f) The proposed variance will not impair an adequate supply of light and air to adjacent land, or 
substan0ally increase the conges0on of the roads and streets, or increase the danger of fire, 
or endanger the public safety, or substan0ally diminish or impair property values within the 
neighborhood; and 

 
The proposed variance does not affect any of the above concerns for air, light, congesJon, fire danger, 
public safety, or property values.  The requested variance will have a posiJve impact on each of the 
criteria and make it possible to use a front yard setback that is more consistent with the surrounding 
neighborhood, thereby eliminaJng building bulk in the front of a lot and increasing the appeal of the 
neighborhood.  GranJng the variance will also eliminate the need for a dangerous and excessively steep 
driveway that would be highly visible to the neighborhood and uncharacterisJc of the surrounding area. 
 

(g) At no 0me aUer the land became nonconforming was the property under common ownership 
with con0guous land, the combina0on of which could have been used to reduce or avoid the 
nonconformity of the land. 

 
Hanson Builders purchased this lot in September 2023 as currently plaeed and there have neither been 
any changes to the property boundaries during our ownership nor the common ownership of conJguous 
land.  We did not create the wetlands, alter the elevaJon, or establish the lot boundaries.  The iniJal 
home placement (with home on rear/southern building pad) was reviewed by the City, which expressed 

64



no concerns about using the rear porJon as opposed to the front porJon of the lot.  The current issue 
was discovered only recently and we are working to resolve this issue as delicately as possible. 
 
Hanson Builders is trying to build a single-family home on the property.  This is consistent with the 
Comprehensive Plan and a permieed use in applicable zoning district.  The proposed home is of similar 
size and scale as other homes in the development and surrounding area.  The circumstances that impact 
this property are unique and were not created by us and, as we’ve demonstrated, the other homes in 
the neighborhood could not be constructed on this lot without a similar setback variance.  ConstrucJng 
the home in the rear porJon of the lot is reasonable and consistent with the essenJal character of the 
area, which generally maintains large front yard setbacks.  Finally, extending the driveway into the typical 
wetland buffer is technically and environmentally acceptable according to the VLAWMO policies.   
 
For all the reasons stated above, we ask that you grant the variance as requested.   
 
Thank you for your consideraJon, 

Hanson Builders Inc. 
 
 
4884-2664-9528, v. 3 

65



OPTION 1

66



OPTION 2

67



Received 05/01/24

68



9'-2" M.O.9'-2" M.O.

16'-2" M.O.

LE
D

G
E 

W
/ 

W
O

O
D

 C
A

P

A

A

C

C

B

B

D D

RAIL

G
IR

D
ER

6X
6 36X78

FIXED4-
2X

636X78
FIXED

84X78
FIXED TEMP

SET THESE WDWS
SAME HT AS EXT DOOR

(3) 11 7 8" LVL FLUSH
EXTEND TO CORNER

3'-0"X8'-0"
LIFESTYLE

84X78
FIXED-TEMP

SET THESE WDWS
SAME HT AS DOOR

36X78
CSMT

(2
)-

30
X5

2
C

SM
T

2680

2080

3080

2480

3080

2480

LI
N

EN

TO BE
DESIGNED

(3) 9 12" LSL FLUSH
EXTEND TO BOTH CORNERS

3-
2X

6

3-
2X

6

43X72
RECESS

REF

D
RI

N
K 

RA
IL

IN
T.

 G
LA

SS
D

O
O

R

SUMP

ER
V

FURNACE

FD

WATER
METER

FURNACE

ERV

VERIFY LCTNS
IN FIELD

UNEXCAVATED

UNEXCAVATED

11'-0" 9'-0" 9'-4 1/2" 9'-1 1/2"

20'-0" 18'-6" 20'-0" 17'-6"
78'-0"

2'-10 1/4"

17
'-0

"
31

'-0
"

18
'-6

"
2'

-0
"

6'-0"5'-6"9'-6"9'-6"5'-6"6'-0"

11'-6"19'-0"11'-6"11'-6"18'-0"

12'-6"

7'
-0

"

2'
-6

"

5'
-0

"
13

'-5
 5

/8
"

2'
-5

 1
/2

"
4'

-3
 1

/2
"

3'
-8

"
3'

-0
 5

/8
"

6'-0"

77'-6"

23'-0"12'-5 1/8"

35'-5 1/8"

41'-5 1/2"

8'-
6 3

/8
"

NO TRUSS @
CHASE AREA(2) 2X10

FLUSH

(2) 9 12"LVL
FLUSH (3) 14" LVL

DROPPED

(3) 11 7 8" LVL
FLUSH

SPORTS
CENTER

EXERCISEWET BAR

FAMILY
ROOM

STORAGE

FRAME WALL
UNDER STAIR

BEDROOM 5

SUITE
BATH 5

WIC

MECHANICAL/
STORAGE

LL HALF
BATH

GOLF
SIMULATOR

TR

TR

34
"X

48
"

TIL
E 

W
A

LL
S

&
 F

LO
O

R

3'-11 3/4"

10
'-0

"

6'
-7

 1
/2

"
4'

-1
0 

1/
2"

1'
-6

"

10
'-0

"
16

'-6
"

19
'-0

"
3'

-0
"

9'
-0

"

10
'-8

"

2X6 STUDS
16" O.C.

20"X8" FTNG

2X6 STUDS 16" O.C.
20"X8" FOOTING

4'
-8

"
9'

-4
 1

/2
"

10
'-8

 1
/4

"

67
'-6

"

68
'-6

"

19
'-8

 3
/4

"
2'

-1
"

6'
-4

 1
/4

"

4'
-3

"
7'

-6
 1

/4
"

2'
-0

"

3'
-5

"
8"

3'
-2

"
9 

3/
4"

6'
-5

 1
/4

"
18

'-8
 3

/4
"

2X6 BRG

2X6 BRG

(X) XX
DROPPED

2X6
3"3"

3'-7"

2X
6

2X
6

22
" F

LO
O

R 
TR

US
SE

S
@

 1
9.

2"
 O

.C
.

22
" F

LO
O

R 
TR

US
SE

S
@

 1
9.

2"
 O

.C
.

22
" F

LO
O

R 
TR

US
SE

S
@

 1
9.

2"
 O

.C
.

7'-0"

4'-8"

6"

2'-10 1/4" 4'-10 1/2" 11'-5 1/2" 1'-1"

8'-9 1/4"4'-3"1'-6"

3"

3"

3'-
10

"

13'-2" 11'-8 1/2" 29'-3 1/4"

2X
6

11'-10 3/4"7'-10"

7'
-5

"8'-8"

6'-11 1/2"

6'-2 3/4"

2'-5 1/8" 7'-10 1/8"

8"

3'
-5

 3
/4

"
4'

-6
"

5'
-1

1 
1/

4"

16
" F

LO
O

R 
TR

US
SE

S
@

 1
9.

2"
 O

.C
.

12
" F

LO
O

R 
TR

US
SE

S
@

 1
9.

2"
 O

.C
.

3-2X6

POST

3X5

POST

PT LD

PT L
D

PT L
D

POST

POST

PT L
D POST

6"
14

'-5
"

3'
-0

" 1'
-0

"

3'-0"

32"X83"
DWO

2/D3

1/D3

35

37

41

10
" S

O
FF

IT

10
" S

O
FF

IT

10
" S

O
FF

IT

10" SOFFIT

10
" S

OFF
IT

43

40

6"

6"

6"

6"

38

36 BY
PA

SS

LOWER LEVEL
SCALE :: 14" = 1'-0" (22X34)
SCALE :: 18" = 1'-0" (11X17)

ADD 6" TO TOP OF
FOUNDATION TO

RAISE GRADE

SCREEN PORCH
FRAMING ABOVE

- SEE DETAIL ON "D"

6"

PT L
D

POST

POST

3-2
X6

6'-7 1/4"

DROP THIS FLOOR 6" - SEE
SECTION C

1 R DN

3'
-3

 1
/4

"
3-2X6

POST

4'-5"

G
IR

D
ER

9'
-6

"

3080
INT. GLASS

DOOR

20"X8" FTNG

48

2X6 BRG

2'
-0

"

7'-2"

2X6 STUDS 16" O.C.
8" POURED CONC.

WALL 48" HIGH
20"X8" FOOTING
R-10 INSULATION

2X6 STUDS 16" O.C.
8" POURED CONC.

WALL 48" HIGH
20"X8" FOOTING
R-10 INSULATION

4/D3

3-4/D2

5/D2
10" POURED WALL
20"X8" FOOTING
R-10 INSULATION

10" POURED WALL
20"X8" FOOTING
R-10 INSULATION

10" POURED WALL
54X12 FTG

SEE ENGINEERING PGS7
FOR DETAIL

R-10 INSULATION

8"
 P

O
UR

ED
 W

A
LL

54
X1

2 
FT

G
SE

E 
EN

G
IN

EE
RI

N
G

 P
G

 S
7

FO
R 

D
ET

A
IL

R-
10

 IN
SU

LA
TIO

N

8" POURED WALL
20"X8" FOOTING
R-10 INSULATION

8"X48" POURED WALL
20"X8" FOOTING

8"
X4

8"
 P

O
UR

ED
 W

A
LL

20
"X

8"
 F

O
O

TIN
G

8"
 P

O
UR

ED
 W

A
LL

40
X1

0 
FT

G
SE

E 
EN

G
IN

EE
RI

N
G

 P
G

 S
7

FO
R 

D
ET

A
IL

R-
10

 IN
SU

LA
TIO

N

2X
6 

ST
UD

S 
12

" O
.C

. @
 L

/O
30

X1
0 

FT
G

SE
E 

EN
G

IN
EE

RI
N

G
 P

G
 S

8
FO

R 
D

ET
A

IL
 R

-1
0 

IN
SU

LA
TIO

N

(2) 2X6 LSL 12" O.C.
SEE ENGINEERING
8" POURED CONC.

WALL 48" HIGH
20"X8" FOOTING
R-10 INSULATION

2X
6 

ST
UD

S 
16

" O
.C

.
8"

 C
O

N
C

. W
A

LL
 4

2"
 H

IG
H

20
"X

8"
 F

O
O

TIN
G

 R
-1

0 
IN

SU
LA

TIO
N CPT LVP

TB

UP 16 R
(17 TOTAL)

UP
 1

 R

LAWN
FAUCET

2-STAGE
AC UNIT

8"X48" POURED WALL
20"X8" FOOTING

23
'-1

1"

5'-7 1/2"

4'-0"

EXTEND FDN & FTNG 6"
FOR POST BEARING

39

42

IMPORTANT!!
5

8" HOLD DOWN ROD IN
FOUNDATION. SEE

ENGINEERING

IMPORTANT!!
5

8" HOLD DOWN ROD IN
FOUNDATION. SEE

ENGINEERING

12
'-9

"
8'

-0
"

20
"X

8"
 F

O
O

TIN
G

17'-10 1/2" 4'-0"
20"X8"
FTG

INSTALL SLEEVE DROP
12" FROM TOP

OF FOUNDATION

6"

40"X12" FOOTING
SEE ENGINEERING

PG S1

7'-6"
3'-4 1/2"11'-6"3'-1"

28"X12" FOOTING
SEE ENGINEERING

PG S1

30"x30"x10"
PAD FTG

30"x30"x10"
PAD FTG

24"x24"x10"
PAD FTG

36"x36"x10"
PAD FTG

24"x24"x10"
PAD FTG

48"x48"x12"
PAD FTG

(2) 2X10
FLUSH

(2
) 9

 1 2"
 L

SL

42"x42"x10"
PAD FTG 42"x42"x10"

PAD FTG

POST

GAMES

HEATED
MAKEUP AIR

HUMIDIFIER HUMIDIFIER

1'-0"
CTR

AC UNIT

A
N

KL
E 

W
A

LL
@

 S
TA

IR
S 

D
O

W
N

RA
IL

MIRROR ON THIS WALL -
NO HVAC

44

BAR
7'-6"X2'-6"

3'-4"

4'
-9

"

SINK

5'
-6

"

3-2X6

6X6

4-2X6

BA
SK

ET
BA

LL
 H

O
O

P
PR

O
V

ID
E 

BL
O

C
KI

N
G

 3
6"

W
ID

E 
(M

IN
) F

RO
M

 8
6"

 T
O

12
3"

 A
N

D
 1

44
" T

O
 1

62
.5

" A
FF

SE
E 

D
TL

 2
0 

O
N

 D
5

3'-0"

1'-0"

1'-6"

2X6 ANKLE
WALL

4-2
X6

50 AMP HOT TUB
DISCONNECT

POST

GAS
LINE

96
X4

8
FI

XE
D

-T
EM

P 
G

LA
SS

(N
O

T 
W

IN
D

O
W

) -
 S

ET
BO

TT
O

M
 @

 4
2"

 A
FF

SI
M

UL
A

TO
R 

SC
RE

EN
 O

N
TH

IS
 W

A
LL

(X) XX
FLUSH

2X
6

45

2'-0"

10
'-6

 3
/4

"

2'-
11

 1/
2"

6'-0"

6'
-0

"

(X) XX
DROPPED

20'-9 7 8"
TALL WALL

8" POURED WALL
20"X8" FOOTING
R-10 INSULATION

1'
-1

0 
1/

4"

1'
-1

0 
1/

4"

RE
C

Y

3'-0"X8'-0"
FIRE DOOR

FROM LUMBER
CO

6'X12' PAD
CENTERED UNDER

HOOP

CORNER
PAD

28

RECESS

TA
NKLE

SS

WATER
 HTR

BACKUP
SUMP

WOOD WOOD

DECK ABOVE
- SEE DETAIL ON "D"

DW

2X6 BRG

18
'-9

 1
/2

"

G
IR

D
ER

47

MIRRORED WALL
2X6 BACKERS

@ 42" FULL LENGTH
OF WALL

20'-9 7 8" +/-
WALL HT.

7"
3'

-8
"

7"
4'

-1
1"

2'
-6

"

46

4'
-9

"

4'-4" 6'
-3

 1
/4

"

2X6

2X6 BRG

LOWER FLOOR PLAN NOTES
1.  8'-10" CEILING HEIGHT UNO
2.  7'-8" WINDOW HEADER HEIGHT @ WALKOUT UNO
3.  INTERIOR WALLS @ 24" OC EXCEPT AT BEARING
WALLS
4.  2X6 BEARING WALLS UNO
5.  ALL INT DOORS PLACED 4 12" FROM CORNER
FRAMING (4" FROM CORNER ON PLAN)

A1

LOWER FLOOR

BUILDERS LICENCE #BC004568

13432 HANSON BLVD. NW
ANDOVER, MINNESOTA 55304

763-421-5435

SHEET TITLE

DATE BY

DI
SC

LA
IM

ER
 ·

A
LL

 M
EA

SU
RE

M
EN

TS
 A

N
D

LO
C

A
TIO

N
S 

O
F 

O
BJ

EC
TS

 H
A

V
E 

BE
EN

 P
LA

C
ED

 A
S

A
C

C
UR

A
TE

LY
 A

S 
PO

SS
IB

LE
. S

O
M

E 
A

D
JU

ST
M

EN
TS

M
A

Y 
BE

 N
EC

ES
SA

RY
 IN

 T
HE

 A
C

TU
A

L 
C

O
N

ST
RU

C
TIO

N
D

UE
 T

O
 S

TR
UC

TU
RA

L 
FR

A
M

IN
G

 A
N

D
 O

TH
ER

 F
IE

LD
C

O
N

SI
D

ER
A

TIO
N

S.

WORKFLOW

SHEET NUMBER

DATE BYREVISIONS

C
O

PY
RI

G
HT

 N
O

TIC
E 

· T
HE

 F
LO

O
RP

LA
N

S 
A

N
D

EL
EV

A
TIO

N
S 

O
F 

A
LL

 H
A

N
SO

N
 B

UI
LD

ER
S,

 IN
C

.  
HO

M
ES

A
RE

 C
O

PY
RI

G
HT

ED
 B

Y 
D

EA
N

 H
A

N
SO

N
 D

BA
 H

A
N

SO
N

C
O

M
PA

N
IE

S,
 L

LC
. O

UR
 C

O
PY

RI
G

HT
S 

HA
V

E 
BE

EN
EN

FO
RC

ED
 A

N
D

 W
IL

L 
C

O
N

TIN
UE

 T
O

 B
E 

EN
FO

RC
ED

.
TH

ES
E 

PL
A

N
S 

M
A

Y 
N

O
T 

BE
 G

IV
EN

 T
O

 O
R 

US
ED

 B
Y

A
N

Y 
O

TH
ER

 P
ER

SO
N

 O
R 

C
O

M
PA

N
Y 

W
ITH

O
UT

W
RI

TT
EN

 P
ER

M
IS

SI
O

N
.

PL
O

T D
AT

E:
 1/
31

/2
02

4 
11

:3
7 

AM ·
© 

C
O

PY
RI

G
HT

 H
AN

SO
N 

C
O

M
PA

NI
ES

, L
LC

 
·

C
:\

Us
er

s\
C

hr
is 

Vo
ne

sh
\H

an
so

n 
Bu

ild
er

s D
ro

pb
ox

\G
ar

ris
on

 G
ro

us
tra

\0
5.

 D
ra

fti
ng

\0
1 

HB
I P

la
ns

\1
. 2

02
3 

HB
I P

ro
je

ct
s\

Ea
st 

Pr
es

er
ve

\8
 Sh

er
w

oo
d 

Tra
il -

 O
ak

m
on

t -
 B

ec
ke

r\
8 

Sh
er

w
oo

d 
Tra

il -
 O

ak
m

on
t -

 B
ec

ke
r

BE
C

KE
R 

RE
SID

EN
C

E
8 

SH
ER

W
O

O
D 

TR
A

IL
TR

AC
T G

EA
ST

 P
RE

SE
RV

E
NO

RT
H 

O
AK

S, 
M

N

O
A

KM
O

N
T

C
US

TO
M

MATCH CONTRACT
AMENDMENTS
FILE CHECK
PERMIT PLAN
FINAL PLANS

01/26/24
XX/XX/XX
XX/XX/XX
XX/XX/XX
03/21/23

KW
XX
XX
XX
KW

REVISION 1 XX/XX/XX XX

PLOT DATE: 1/31/2024

69



A

A

25
'-7

"

C

C

B

B

D

4-
2X

6

SET THESE WDWS
7" BELOW CLG

40X96
FIXED4-

2X
6

2-
2X

648X104
FIXED-TEMP

SET THESE WDWS
ON FLOOR

2-
2X

6

36X80
CSMT

84X32
FIXED

3" BETWEEN
84X80

FIXED TEMP

3'
-0

"X
8'

-0
"

LI
FE

ST
YL

E

48
X3

6
FI

XE
D

-T
EM

P
48

X3
6

FI
XE

D
-T

EM
P

2868

2-
2X

6

2-
2X

6

30X24
FIXED

30X72
CSMT

3'-6"X8'-0"
W/ 12" SIDELITES

6'-0"6'-6"

48
X8

4
FI

XE
D

7 
1 2"

 B
ET

W
EE

N
48

X9
6

FI
XE

D

74
X8

4
FI

XE
D

-T
EM

P
7 

1 2"
 B

ET
W

EE
N

74
X9

6
FI

XE
D

-T
EM

P

4'
-1

1"
6'

-7
"

4'
-1

1"

4'
-8

"
6'

-8
"

5'
-2

"

36
X8

4
FI

XE
D

-T
EM

P
7 

1 2"
 B

ET
W

EE
N

36
X9

6
FI

XE
D

-T
EM

P

36
X8

4
FI

XE
D

-T
EM

P
7 

1 2"
 B

ET
W

EE
N

36
X9

6
FI

XE
D

-T
EM

P

30
X9

6
FI

XE
D

-T
EM

P
30

X9
6

FI
XE

D
-T

EM
P

30X96
FIXED-TEMP

2480

2480

26
80

 P
KT

2X
6

2680 PKT
2X6

2480
C

HA
SE

SH
EL

V
ES

LE
D

G
E

O
V

ER
LO

O
K

LEDGE

O
V

ER
LO

O
K

TO BE
DESIGNED

TO BE
DESIGNED

TO BE
DESIGNED

24
X6

4
FI

XE
D

-T
EM

P

RE
F

TO
W

ER

36
X8

5
RE

C
ES

S
36

X8
5

RE
C

ES
S

FR
EE

ZE
R

TO
W

ER

RE
C

Y
RE

F

BEV
FRIDGE

5'-2" 3'-4" 9'-4 1/2" 9'-1 1/2" 10'-0" 10'-0"
20'-0" 18'-6" 20'-0" 17'-6"

78'-0"

7'
-0

"
5'

-1
0"

2'
-3

"
1'

-1
1"

5'
-6

"
4'

-8
"

5'
-6

"
17

'-0
"

25
'-0

"
24

'-6
"

2'
-0

"

68
'-6

"

23'-0"10'-7"1'-10 1/8"

6'-0"5'-6"9'-6"9'-6"5'-6"6'-0"

6'-2"6'-10"

16' x 8' GARAGE DOOR - INSULATED

(2) 11 7 8" LVL

SEE NARROW BRACING DETAIL
EXTEND HEADERS TO CORNERS

9' x 8' GARAGE DOOR - INSULATED9' x 8' GARAGE DOOR - INSULATED

(3) 14" LVL

11'-6"19'-0"11'-6"11'-6"18'-0"

12'-6"

13'-0"4'-0"

5'
-0

"
13

'-5
 5

/8
"

8'-
6 3

/8
"

26
'-6

"

4'-
11

 3/
8"

77'-6"

MAIN LEVEL
SCALE :: 14" = 1'-0" (22X34)
SCALE :: 18" = 1'-0" (11X17)

6'
-0

"

1'
-6

"

2'
-6

"

6'
-1

"
5'

-5
"

3'
-5

"
5'

-2
 1

/2
"

5'
-2

 1
/2

"
2'

-8
"

5'
-7

 5
/8

"
8'

-0
"

5'
-4

 3
/8

"

3'-0"

1'-6"

4'
-5

"
4'

-7
"

10
'-0

"
10

'-0
"

16
'-6

"
19

'-0
"

3'
-0

"
9'

-0
"

GRAND ENTRY

EXECUTIVE OFFICE

RECEPTION HALF
BATH

WIC

BACK
HALL

MUDROOM

PREP
KITCHENKITCHEN

GREAT ROOM

DINING

SUNROOM
WOOD

GARAGE

4" CONCRETE FLOOR WITH
FIBER MESH SLOPED TO DOORS
2X6 GARAGE WALLS @ 16" O.C.

POLY & INSULATE WALLS & CEILING
5

8" DRYWALL ON CEILING
1
2" DRYWALL ON WALLS

TAPE, SAND, SMOOTH CEILING
 & PRIME WALLS

D
RY

W
A

LL
LE

D
G

E
D

RY
W

A
LL

LE
D

G
E

UPPER SPORTS
CENTER

2X6
BRG

2X6 BRG

(2) 9 12" LSL
DROPPED

(2) 9 12" LVL
DROPPED

(2) 9 12" LSL DROPPED

(2) 2X10
FROM LNDG-
HANG INTO

POST

(2) 9 12" LSL
FLUSH

18
'-8

 3
/4

"
11

'-1
0 

1/
4"

1'-6 1/2"

4'-8 1/4" 3'-3 1/2" 6'-10" 1'-10" 8"

6'-1 1/2"
3'-4"

2'-10"

5'-9" 10" 1'-1" 3'-6 3/8"

5'-11"

10'-2"
2'-6 1/4"

3'-6"

2'
-5

 1
/4

"

2'-8"

7'
-3

 1
/2

"
6'

-6
 3

/4
"

13
'-1

0 
1/

4"
4'

-6
"

7 
1/

2"
8'

-2
 1

/2
"

9 
3/

4"
10

"

8"
16

'-3
 1

/2
"

8"

3"
3"

6'
-0

 3
/4

"

1'
-9

"
5'

-4
"

6'
-1

0"
3'

-9
"

7'
-4

"

LEDGE

2/D3

1/D3

9'-4 1/2"4'-5 1/2"

1'-8"

7'-9 1/2"

7'-1 3/4"

2'
-5

 3
/8

"

6'
-1

 3
/4

"
10

'-4
"

1'
-7

 1
/4

"
1'

-0
"

10
"

13
'-1

1"

DOWN 17
RISERS

UP 19
RISERS

8" RAISED CLG
W/ PERIMETER SOFFIT

LED PERIMETER SEE DETAIL

9:12 VAULT9:12 VAULT

FIREPLACE
R.O. 43"W x 36"H x 18"D
SEE ELEVATION FOR
FRAMING DETAILSRI

D
G

E 
V

A
UL

T

51

14

4

2

3

5

16

1

6

7

11

9

10

19

52

15

12

16

FL
O

O
R 

LI
N

E 
A

BO
V

E

FLOOR LINE ABOVE

FLOOR LINE ABOVE

24
" F

LO
O

R 
TR

US
SE

S
@

 1
9.

2"
 O

.C
.

16
" F

LO
O

R 
TR

US
SE

S
@

 1
9.

2"
 O

.C
.

24
" F

LO
O

R 
TR

US
SE

S
@

 1
9.

2"
 O

.C
.

24
" F

LO
O

R 
TR

US
SE

S
@

 1
9.

2"
 O

.C
.

24
" F

LO
O

R 
TR

US
SE

S
@

 1
9.

2"
 O

.C
.

2X6 BRG2X6

POST

POST

POST

POST POST

POST

(3) 9 12" LVL
DROPPED POST

POST

ARCH
SOFFIT

PORCH

(3) 9 12" LSL-FLUSH
EXTEND TO CORNER

(2) 9 12" LVL-FLUSH
EXTEND TO CORNERS

6'-0"

35'-5 1/8"

41'-5 1/2"

TR

POST

G
IR

D
ER

36
X8

0
C

SM
T

36X80
CSMT

18
 1

/2
"

10"

18 1/2"
ROOF TRUSSES

@ 24" O.C.

(2
) 9

 1 2"
 L

V
L

D
RO

PP
ED

(2
) 9

 1 2"
 L

V
L

D
RO

PP
ED

ROOF TRUSSES
@ 24" O.C.

RO
O

F 
TR

US
SE

S
@

 2
4"

 O
.C

.

RO
O

F 
TR

US
SE

S
@

 2
4"

 O
.C

.

48
" F

LO
O

R 
TR

US
SE

S
@

 1
9.

2"
 O

.C
.

PT LDPT L
D

G
IR

D
ER

G
IR

D
ER

GIRDER

5X
7 6X6

RO
O

F 
TR

US
SE

S
@

 2
4"

 O
.C

.

4'-0"

10
"

SE
T 

TH
ES

E 
UP

PE
R 

W
IN

D
O

W
S

24
" B

EL
O

W
 C

LG
.

SE
T 

UP
PE

R 
W

IN
D

O
W

 2
4"

BE
LO

W
 C

LG
.

SCREEN PORCH

(X
) X

X 
D

RO
PP

ED

POST

4'
-6

"
C

TR
 O

F 
BM

6'
-9

 1
/2

"
C

TR
 O

F 
BM

5'
-2

 1
/2

"
C

TR
 O

F 
BM

4-
2X

6

3'-10" 3'-10" 3'-10"

40X96
FIXED

40X96
FIXED

40X96
FIXED

48X104
FIXED-TEMP

48X104
FIXED-TEMP

48
X3

6
FI

XE
D

-T
EM

P
48

X3
6

FI
XE

D
-T

EM
P

4'
-8

"
4'

-8
"

D
RY

W
A

LL
LE

D
G

E
D

RY
W

A
LL

LE
D

G
E

30X24
FIXED

30X72
CSMT

30X24
FIXED

30X72
FIXED

SET THESE WINDOWS
9'-6" AFF

(2) 9 12" LSL-FLUSH
EXTEND TO CORNER

PT L
D

1'
-6

"

6"

24
" F

LO
O

R 
TR

US
SE

S
@

 1
9.

2"
 O

.C
.

ROOF TRUSSES
@ 24" O.C.

STAMPED
CONCRETE

4'-8"5'-0"

4'
-6

"

4'-3"

9'-2"
CTR OF RANGE

4'-6"

9'-5 1/2"

A
C

C
ES

S
A

TT
IC

9 14 X 9 14 BEAMS MID CEILING
SEE ELEVATION 19

BLOCKING AS REQD.

EQ
UA

L
EQ

UA
L

EQ
UA

L

EQ
UA

L

11'-10"

1

STAIR AND ENTRY
TALL WALLS

SEE EINGINEERING FOR
POST AND FRAMING

REQUIREMENTS

VENT ACCESS W/
FACE FRAME

9 14 X 7 14  BEAM TIGHT TO CLG

3
4 X 5 12 RIPPED

T&G W/EASED
EDGE BOTH

SIDES BY CAB
CO. - CONFIRM

FINISH @
DESIGN MTG

8'
-8

 1
/4

"

9 
1 4 X

 5
 1 2 B

EA
M

 O
V

ER
 M

D
F

9 
1 4 X

 5
 1 2 B

EA
M

 O
V

ER
 M

D
F

9 
1 4 X

 5
 1 2 B

EA
M

 O
V

ER
 M

D
F

2'-4"

V
EN

T

FIREPLACE
R.O. 46 14"W x 49"H x 22 14"D

SEE ELEVATION FOR
FRAMING DETAILS

TRAYRECYDWR
MICRO DW

SINK

(2
) 9

 1 2"
 L

SL
-F

LU
SH

(2
) 9

 1 2"
 L

SL

(X) XX-DROPPED

(3) 2X10

(X) XX

(2) 11 7 8" LVL

POST

POST

5X
7 P

SL

5X
7 P

SL

5X
5

GLU
LA

M

5X7 PSL
5X

7 P
SL

5X5GLULAM

4-2
X6

PT L
D

G
IR

D
ER

G
IR

D
ER

G
IR

D
ER

PT LD

PT LD

G
IR

D
ER

10"

10"

(2) 2X10
FROM LNDG-
HANG INTO

POST

1'-9"

V
EN

T 
FP

TH
RU

 R
O

O
F

PANTRY

WOOD CEILING

TRENCH DRAIN

TRENCH DRAIN

TRENCH DRAIN

GASFURNACE

O
PE

N
 E

N
D

C
A

PS
 @

 S
TA

IR
S

G
O

IN
G

 U
P

ANKLE
WALL

@ STAIRS
DN

SH
LV

S

RAIL

RAIL

RAIL

RA
IL

RA
IL

RA
IL

RA
IL

3'-0 1/2" 7'-9" 8"

FA
LS

E 
BA

C
K

SH
EL

V
ES

D

LAWN
FAUCET
W/ HOT
WATER

WOOD TILE

SMOOTH CEILING:
ENTIRE MAIN LEVEL

SMOOTH CEILING:
ENTIRE MAIN LEVEL

D
BL

 2
68

0 
RO

LL
ER

FI
EL

D
 M

UL
LE

D
 T

O
30

X9
6 

W
D

W
S

SUPPLIED BY
INT DOOR CO.

6X6

POST

4-2X6

5X7

3-2
X6

4-2
X6

RAIL

2'-10 1/2"

4-2
X6

DW
FINISH

9'
-2

"

9'-0"
5'-9 1/2"

BASE BOARD TRIM & EPOXY @
BASE BOARDS & FLOOR

POST

8'-3"

BACKING @
PENDANTS

TOP WINDOW
TRIM DTL
12/D4

TOP WINDOW
TRIM DTL
12/D4

TOP WINDOW
TRIM DTL
12/D4

UNDER
COUNTER

OVEN

6'
-0

"
18

'-6
"

2'-0"

8" 5 3/8"

2X4 LSL FLAT
ATTACHED W/ 6"
LEDGER LOCK

EVERY 2'

LED LIGHTS
ON LEDGE

TYP. DETAIL
@ GRT RM

4"

FINISH DIMS

GAS
LINE

WOOD

WOOD

POST

2'-
0"

4'-6 3/4"

SH
LV

S
43

X7
2

RE
C

ES
S

BALL STORAGE
BELOW

18/D4

18
/D

4

MAIN FLOOR PLAN NOTES
1.  10'-1 18" CEILING HEIGHT UNO
2.  8'-7 18" WINDOW HEADER HEIGHT UNO
3.  2X6 BEARING WALLS UNO
4.  INTERIOR WALLS @ 24" OC EXCEPT AT BEARING &
KITCHEN WALLS
5.  20 MINUTE FIRE DOOR @ GARAGE TO HOUSE
6.  ALL INT DOORS PLACED 4 12" FROM CORNER
FRAMING (4" FROM CORNER ON PLAN)

A2

MAIN FLOOR

BUILDERS LICENCE #BC004568

13432 HANSON BLVD. NW
ANDOVER, MINNESOTA 55304

763-421-5435

SHEET TITLE

DATE BY

DI
SC

LA
IM

ER
 ·

A
LL

 M
EA

SU
RE

M
EN

TS
 A

N
D

LO
C

A
TIO

N
S 

O
F 

O
BJ

EC
TS

 H
A

V
E 

BE
EN

 P
LA

C
ED

 A
S

A
C

C
UR

A
TE

LY
 A

S 
PO

SS
IB

LE
. S

O
M

E 
A

D
JU

ST
M

EN
TS

M
A

Y 
BE

 N
EC

ES
SA

RY
 IN

 T
HE

 A
C

TU
A

L 
C

O
N

ST
RU

C
TIO

N
D

UE
 T

O
 S

TR
UC

TU
RA

L 
FR

A
M

IN
G

 A
N

D
 O

TH
ER

 F
IE

LD
C

O
N

SI
D

ER
A

TIO
N

S.

WORKFLOW

SHEET NUMBER

DATE BYREVISIONS

C
O

PY
RI

G
HT

 N
O

TIC
E 

· T
HE

 F
LO

O
RP

LA
N

S 
A

N
D

EL
EV

A
TIO

N
S 

O
F 

A
LL

 H
A

N
SO

N
 B

UI
LD

ER
S,

 IN
C

.  
HO

M
ES

A
RE

 C
O

PY
RI

G
HT

ED
 B

Y 
D

EA
N

 H
A

N
SO

N
 D

BA
 H

A
N

SO
N

C
O

M
PA

N
IE

S,
 L

LC
. O

UR
 C

O
PY

RI
G

HT
S 

HA
V

E 
BE

EN
EN

FO
RC

ED
 A

N
D

 W
IL

L 
C

O
N

TIN
UE

 T
O

 B
E 

EN
FO

RC
ED

.
TH

ES
E 

PL
A

N
S 

M
A

Y 
N

O
T 

BE
 G

IV
EN

 T
O

 O
R 

US
ED

 B
Y

A
N

Y 
O

TH
ER

 P
ER

SO
N

 O
R 

C
O

M
PA

N
Y 

W
ITH

O
UT

W
RI

TT
EN

 P
ER

M
IS

SI
O

N
.

PL
O

T D
AT

E:
 1/
31

/2
02

4 
11

:3
7 

AM ·
© 

C
O

PY
RI

G
HT

 H
AN

SO
N 

C
O

M
PA

NI
ES

, L
LC

 
·

C
:\

Us
er

s\
C

hr
is 

Vo
ne

sh
\H

an
so

n 
Bu

ild
er

s D
ro

pb
ox

\G
ar

ris
on

 G
ro

us
tra

\0
5.

 D
ra

fti
ng

\0
1 

HB
I P

la
ns

\1
. 2

02
3 

HB
I P

ro
je

ct
s\

Ea
st 

Pr
es

er
ve

\8
 Sh

er
w

oo
d 

Tra
il -

 O
ak

m
on

t -
 B

ec
ke

r\
8 

Sh
er

w
oo

d 
Tra

il -
 O

ak
m

on
t -

 B
ec

ke
r

BE
C

KE
R 

RE
SID

EN
C

E
8 

SH
ER

W
O

O
D 

TR
A

IL
TR

AC
T G

EA
ST

 P
RE

SE
RV

E
NO

RT
H 

O
AK

S, 
M

N

O
A

KM
O

N
T

C
US

TO
M

MATCH CONTRACT
AMENDMENTS
FILE CHECK
PERMIT PLAN
FINAL PLANS

01/26/24
XX/XX/XX
XX/XX/XX
XX/XX/XX
03/21/23

KW
XX
XX
XX
KW

REVISION 1 XX/XX/XX XX

PLOT DATE: 1/31/2024

70



A

A

C

C

B

B

D D

2-
2X

684X66
FIXED2-

2X
636X66

CSMT

(2) 9 12" LSL

(2)-42X84
FIXED-TEMP

30X72
FIXED-TEMP

OBSCURE GLASS

32
X4

2
C

SM
T

32
X4

2
C

SM
T

36
X7

2
FI

XE
D

M
UL

LE
D

28X48
CSMT

30X72
FIXED

SE
E 

M
A

IN
LE

V
EL

36X66
CSMT

36
X7

2
C

SM
T

M
UL

LE
D

36
X7

2
C

SM
T

M
UL

LE
D

(4) - 28X36
FIXED

30X72
CSMT

SE
E 

M
A

IN
LE

V
EL

SE
E 

M
A

IN
LE

V
EL

SE
E 

M
A

IN
LE

V
EL

DBL 2468

ASTRIGAL

DBL 2468

ASTRIGAL

2468

24
68

 P
KT

CURB

2468

24
68

 P
KT

2868

24
68

 P
KT

2668

2468 PKT

32
"X

83
"

D
W

O
24

68
 P

KT

2468 PKT

2468

2668

2668

24
68

 P
KT

32"X83"
DWO

2'-10"

23'-0"

DRWS

DRWS

DRWS

DRWS

DRWS

JETTED TUB
67X31

WASHER ALWAYS
ON LEFT

D
RW

S
TR

D
RW

S
TR

TR TR

34"X48"
TILE WALLS
& FLOOR

DRWS
TR

TB

TB

TB

TB

RAIL

OWNER'S
BATH

8:12 VAULT8:12 VAULT

RI
D

G
E 

V
A

UL
T

FL
A

T 
C

LG

FLAT
CLG

12" RAISED CLNG
W/ PERIMETER SOFFIT

SMOOTH CEILING
LED PERIMITER SEE DETAIL

TO BE
DESIGNED

TO BE
DESIGNED

TO BE
DESIGNED

WIC

TO BE
DESIGNED

WIC

TO BE
DESIGNED

WIC

6" RAISED

OWNERS SUITE

GRAND
HALL

DOWN 19
RISERS

LE
D

G
E

O
V

ER
LO

O
K

O
V

ER
LO

O
K

10"WX5"T
WOOD
BEAMS
15/D4

W
O

O
D

 B
EA

M
S EQUAL 10" EQUAL

WOOD

2'
-6

"
TY

P

2'-6"
TYP

2'-6"

3"

4'-
3"

6" 
SO

FF
IT

23

24

4"
 D

EE
P 

X 
42

" T
A

LL
 L

ED
G

E
Q

UA
RT

Z 
TO

P16
" D

EE
P 

X
20

" T
A

LL
BE

N
C

H

20
X6

0
FI

XE
D

 S
HW

R
G

LA
SS

25

LINEN

30

29

WIC

WIC

LAUNDRY

LINEN
TO BE

DESIGNED

6" 
SO

FF
IT

3"

3'-
4"

6"
 S

O
FF

IT

3"
3'

-2
"

3"

3"

3" 3'-0"

6" SOFFIT

33

6"

9"
5'

-1
 1

/2
"

9"

6"
 S

O
FF

IT

1'-0"

1'
-0

"

3"
2'-9"

3"

6" SOFFIT

DN 2 R

32

31

BEDROOM 4

BEDROOM 2

SUITE
BATH 2 BEDROOM 3

SUITE
BATH 3

BU
D

D
Y

BU
N

K

SUITE
BATH 4
31

D
BL

 2
46

8
RO

LL
ER

42"

DRYWALL

LEDGE W/

WOOD CAP

9'-4" 9'-0" 5'-10 1/8" 5'-5 7/8" 3'-11 1/2" 3'-9"

3'-4" 4'-3" 9'-10 1/2"11'-4" 7'-8 1/2"1'-8"

20'-0" 19'-0 1/2" 17'-5 1/2"

18'-4"

3'-3"

15'-6"

72'-0"

3'
-0

 3
/4

"
9'

-6
"

3'
-7

"

16
'-1

 3
/4

"
2'

-4
"

8'
-9

 1
/4

"
8'

-9
 1

/4
"

17
'-6

 1
/2

"
8'

-0
"

24
'-5

 1
/2

"
3'

-0
"

53
'-0

"

6'-10"9'-5"

2'-0"6'-2"

8'-1"5'-0"6'-2"6'-6"

13'-1"1'-4"12'-8"

18'-3"

16'-3"

19'-3"3'-0"14'-0"13'-0"3'-0"

3"

3'
-0

"
2'

-6
"

6'
-1

"
5'

-5
"

3'
-5

"
5'

-2
 1

/2
"

5'
-2

 1
/2

"
2'

-8
"

3'
-0

"
19

'-0
"

16
'-6

"
11

'-6
"

2'
-6

"

UPPER LEVEL
SCALE :: 14" = 1'-0" (22X34)
SCALE :: 18" = 1'-0" (11X17)

18'-4" 11'-5 5/16" 2'-8 7/16" 10" 3'-7 1/4"

4'-1"3'-6"3'-10 1/2"6'-9 3/4"3'-6 7/8"6'-11 7/8"6'-0 1/2"1'-11 1/2"

3'-2"

2X6

2X
6

3'-2 1/2"4'-3 1/2"11'-11 1/2"1'-2"4'-3 1/2"12'-3 3/4" 1'-6 1/4"

9'-5 1/2"
FIRST R DN

4'
-8

"
4'

-7
 1

/2
"

5'-4"

1'
-0

"
7'

-0
"

6"
5'

-0
"

6'
-2

 1
/4

"
5'

-2
"

7'
-2

 3
/4

"
6'

-1
 3

/4
"

4'
-2

"

5'
-6

"

10
'-4

"
1'

-9
 1

/4
"

3'
-9

"

15
'-1

0 
1/

4"
6"

14
'-7

 1
/4

"
1'

-3
"

6"
7'

-0
"

2'
-4

 7
/8

"

8'-0" 8'-3 3/4"2'-3"

3'-7 1/2" 8'-8 1/4"

2'
-9

"
2'

-3
 1

/4
"

7'
-4

"

7'
-7

 1
/2

"
1'

-2
"

4'
-0

 1
/2

"
7 

1/
2"

4'
-1

"

3'
-0

 1
/2

"
3'

-4
 1

/4
"

4'
-1

"

10
'-6

 1
3/

16
"

2'-1 1/2"

3'
-4

 1
/4

"
5'

-0
"

RO
O

F 
TR

US
SE

S
@

 2
4"

 O
.C

.

RO
O

F 
TR

US
SE

S
@

 2
4"

 O
.C

.

RO
O

F 
TR

US
SE

S
@

 2
4"

 O
.C

.

G
IR

D
ER

G
IR

D
ER

ROOF TRUSSES
@ 24" O.C.

GIRDER

4-2
X6

6X6
4-2X6

3-2X6

BUILD EXT.
WALL PER PLAN
THEN BUILD THE

SECTION BETWEEN
GABLES OUT 15" TO

A 9" O.H.

SET THESE WDWS
ON FLOOR

30X72
CSMT

SET THESE WINDOWS
7'-6" AFF

28X48
CSMT

28X48
FIXED

FRAME
THIS WALL
@ 7'-5 14"

G
IR

D
ER

ROOF TRUSSES
@ 24" O.C.

4:12 VAULT

4:
12

 V
A

UL
T

RIDGE VAULT

4:
12

 V
A

UL
T

BUILD WALLS
TO VAULT

A
C

C
ES

S
A

TT
IC

2X6

2X4
FUR WALL

RO
O

F 
TR

US
SE

S
@

 2
4"

 O
.C

.

12" RAISED

2'-6"

2'
-6

"
7'

-7
 1

/2
"

7'-7 1/2" 2'-6"

GRAND
ENTRY

VOLUME

7"

22

2'
-0

"

GIRDER

GIRDER

(2) 9 12" LSL(2) 9 12" LSL

STAIR AND ENTRY
TALL WALLS

SEE EINGINEERING FOR
POST AND FRAMING

REQUIREMENTS

HEATED
FLOOR

SMOOTH
CLG

SMOOTH
CLG

SMOOTH
CLG

WOOD

TIL
E 

TO
 &

IN
C

LU
D

IN
G

C
LG

WD

CPT

WOOD

5'
-1

1 
3/

4"

O
PE

N
 E

N
D

C
A

PS
 @

 S
TA

IR
S

G
O

IN
G

 U
P

7'-
1 5

/8
"

6"

2'
-4

"

DRYWALL

TIL
E

FI
N

IS
H

SET BOTTOM
@ 24" AFF

RA
IL

RA
IL

6'-5 1/4"

4 5/8"

7 3/8"

5"

LED
LIGHTS

ON LEDGE
FINISH DIMS

LEDGE
FRAMED @

4 12" W X 3 12" T

TYP. DETAIL
@ OBR

2'-6"

SLOPE CLG
DN 1"

PIVOT GLASS
ABOVE
DOOR

SMOOTH
CLG

5'-11 1/2"

30" OPNG

2'
-6

"
2'

-6
"

HAND
HELD

DIVERTER FOR
HAND HELD

BONUS
ROOM

6" SOFFIT

4'-10 1/2"

SHOWER VALVES
CENTERED BELOW HEADS

ABOVE LEDGE

3'-9 1/4"

50

8'-11"

30
X6

0
C

A
ST

 IR
O

N
TIL

ED
 W

A
LL

S

34"X48"
TILE WALLS
& FLOOR

BYPASS

4"

2'
-2

"
3'

-0
"

28

RE
C

ES
S RE

C
ES

S28

28

RECESS

WOOD

WOOD

WOOD

D
RW

S

BE
V

FR
ID

G
E

SH
EL

F

26

STRUCTURAL
GABLE

UPPER FLOOR PLAN NOTES
1.  8'-1 18" CEILING HEIGHT UNO
2.  6'-11 3 8" WINDOW HEADER HEIGHT UNO
3.  INTERIOR WALLS @ 24" OC EXCEPT AT BEARING

WALLS
4. ALL INT DOORS PLACED 4 12" FROM CORNER

FRAMING (4" FROM CORNER ON PLAN)

RADON MITIGATION SYSTEM
1.

A3

UPPER FLOOR

BUILDERS LICENCE #BC004568

13432 HANSON BLVD. NW
ANDOVER, MINNESOTA 55304

763-421-5435

SHEET TITLE

DATE BY

DI
SC

LA
IM

ER
 ·

A
LL

 M
EA

SU
RE

M
EN

TS
 A

N
D

LO
C

A
TIO

N
S 

O
F 

O
BJ

EC
TS

 H
A

V
E 

BE
EN

 P
LA

C
ED

 A
S

A
C

C
UR

A
TE

LY
 A

S 
PO

SS
IB

LE
. S

O
M

E 
A

D
JU

ST
M

EN
TS

M
A

Y 
BE

 N
EC

ES
SA

RY
 IN

 T
HE

 A
C

TU
A

L 
C

O
N

ST
RU

C
TIO

N
D

UE
 T

O
 S

TR
UC

TU
RA

L 
FR

A
M

IN
G

 A
N

D
 O

TH
ER

 F
IE

LD
C

O
N

SI
D

ER
A

TIO
N

S.

WORKFLOW

SHEET NUMBER

DATE BYREVISIONS

C
O

PY
RI

G
HT

 N
O

TIC
E 

· T
HE

 F
LO

O
RP

LA
N

S 
A

N
D

EL
EV

A
TIO

N
S 

O
F 

A
LL

 H
A

N
SO

N
 B

UI
LD

ER
S,

 IN
C

.  
HO

M
ES

A
RE

 C
O

PY
RI

G
HT

ED
 B

Y 
D

EA
N

 H
A

N
SO

N
 D

BA
 H

A
N

SO
N

C
O

M
PA

N
IE

S,
 L

LC
. O

UR
 C

O
PY

RI
G

HT
S 

HA
V

E 
BE

EN
EN

FO
RC

ED
 A

N
D

 W
IL

L 
C

O
N

TIN
UE

 T
O

 B
E 

EN
FO

RC
ED

.
TH

ES
E 

PL
A

N
S 

M
A

Y 
N

O
T 

BE
 G

IV
EN

 T
O

 O
R 

US
ED

 B
Y

A
N

Y 
O

TH
ER

 P
ER

SO
N

 O
R 

C
O

M
PA

N
Y 

W
ITH

O
UT

W
RI

TT
EN

 P
ER

M
IS

SI
O

N
.

PL
O

T D
AT

E:
 1/
31

/2
02

4 
11

:3
7 

AM ·
© 

C
O

PY
RI

G
HT

 H
AN

SO
N 

C
O

M
PA

NI
ES

, L
LC

 
·

C
:\

Us
er

s\
C

hr
is 

Vo
ne

sh
\H

an
so

n 
Bu

ild
er

s D
ro

pb
ox

\G
ar

ris
on

 G
ro

us
tra

\0
5.

 D
ra

fti
ng

\0
1 

HB
I P

la
ns

\1
. 2

02
3 

HB
I P

ro
je

ct
s\

Ea
st 

Pr
es

er
ve

\8
 Sh

er
w

oo
d 

Tra
il -

 O
ak

m
on

t -
 B

ec
ke

r\
8 

Sh
er

w
oo

d 
Tra

il -
 O

ak
m

on
t -

 B
ec

ke
r

BE
C

KE
R 

RE
SID

EN
C

E
8 

SH
ER

W
O

O
D 

TR
A

IL
TR

AC
T G

EA
ST

 P
RE

SE
RV

E
NO

RT
H 

O
AK

S, 
M

N

O
A

KM
O

N
T

C
US

TO
M

MATCH CONTRACT
AMENDMENTS
FILE CHECK
PERMIT PLAN
FINAL PLANS

01/26/24
XX/XX/XX
XX/XX/XX
XX/XX/XX
03/21/23

KW
XX
XX
XX
KW

REVISION 1 XX/XX/XX XX

PLOT DATE: 1/31/2024

71



FRONT ELEVATION

UPPER FLOOR PLATE

UPPER FLOOR

MAIN FLOOR PLATE

MAIN FLOOR

TOP OF FOUNDATION

TOP OF FTNG

10
'-1

 1
/8

"
8'

-1
 1

/8
"

8'
-7

 1
/8

"
6'

-1
1 

3/
8"

9'
-0

"

WINDOW

WINDOW

24
 3

/4
"

24
 1

/4
"

SCALE :: 14" = 1'-0" (22X34)
SCALE :: 18" = 1'-0" (11X17)

7'
-8

"

WINDOW

TOP OF FLOOR

5"

1'-3" 1'-3"

6 
13

/1
6"

HE
EL

MAIN
PLATE

GARAGE
PLATE

MAIN
FLOOR

8'
-1

 1
/8

"

MAIN
FLOOR

10
'-2

"
TO

P 
O

F 
EA

V
E

2'
-7

 1
/2

"

18
12

11
12

18
12

18
12 11

12

11
12

11
12

11
12

11
12

BUILD EXT.
WALL PER PLAN

THEN BUILD
OUT 15" TO
A 9" O.H.

7'
-3

"

6'
-2

"

STAMPED
CONCRETE

SEE COLUMN
DTL - THIS PG

2'-0"

1'-3"

2'-0"

1'-3" 1'-3"

2'-0"

1'-8"

RETURN
STONE

SADDLE

30X66
FIXED

8" STONE LINTEL

4" STONE LINTEL

30X66
FIXED

8" STONE LINTEL

4" STONE LINTEL

10" TRIM W/ 2" TRIM @ TOP
-WRAP BACK TO HOUSE THIS

SIDE ONLY

10" TRIM W/ 2" TRIM @ TOP

6'-10"

1'
-3

 1
5/

16
"

HE
EL

RETURN
PANELS

HOUSE #

8" RAKE SEE DETAIL THIS PAG
E

8" RAKE SEE DETAIL THIS PAG
E

8" RAKE SEE DETAIL THIS PAG
E

METAL
CORNERS

METAL
CORNER

WRAP
STONE

18"

4'-0" 4'-0" 3'-6" 4'-0"4'-0"3'-6"

6'
-8

 3
/4

"

21/D5

21/D5

5'-0"

4'
-0

"

METAL
CORNERS

METAL
CORNERSRAIL @

BACK OF
PORCH

D
O

W
N

SP
O

UT

GUTTERS

METAL ROOF

METAL ROOF

GUTTERS GUTTERS

SIDING @
GABLE END

6"

6"
 T

RI
M

5
12

5
12

3'
-7

"

1'-3"

1'-3"

34
'-1

1 
13

/1
6"

7 
1/

8"

BALL
STORAGE

PLATE

6'
-6

 1
/8

"

ELEVATION NOTES
FRONT:
1. 8 14" CEMENT BOARD SIDING (7" REVEAL)
2. 5 4"X6" TRIM BOARDS @ OPENINGS U.N.O.
3. SEE DETAIL 10/D4 FOR CORNERS U.N.O.
4. NOTE: FILL IN OPENINGS OVER ALL BRACKETS
5. SHIP FRONT DOOR W/ NO BRICK MOULD
6. BOARD & BATTEN @ 24" OC SPACING U.N.O.

SIDES AND REAR (PER NEIGHBORHOOD):
1. 8 14" CEMENT BOARD SIDING (7" REVEAL)
2. 5 4"X4" TRIM BOARDS @ OPENINGS U.N.O.
3. METAL CORNERS @ BACK U.N.O.

6x6 POST 15
 1

/4
"

CEDAR PANEL

BLOCKING
AS NEEDED

7
16 CEDAR
PANEL

MAIN

15 1/4"

17 3/4"

PORCH COLUMN
SCALE : 1/2" = 1'-0"

MITER
CORNERS

10
'-2

"
C

O
N

FI
RM

 D
IM

 O
N

 F
RO

N
T 

EL
EV

A
TIO

N

HEADER
PER PLAN

SMOOTH
FINISH

6/D3

ALUM SOFFIT
& FASCIA

*SEE ELEVATION & SECTIONS
FOR ROOF PITCHES, ETC

7 1/4"

3/4"

SIDE ELEVATION
SCALE :: 18" = 1'-0" (22X34)
SCALE :: 116" = 1'-0" (11X17)REAR ELEVATION

SCALE :: 18" = 1'-0" (22X34)
SCALE :: 116" = 1'-0" (11X17)

12
12

9
12

10
'-2

"
TO

P 
O

F 
EA

V
E

11
12

11
12

11
12

11
12

6
12

8
12

6
12

6
12

6" 9"

3 12

4
12

1'-3"

1'-3"

1'
-2

 3
/8

"
HE

EL

MAIN
PLATE6 

13
/1

6"
HE

EL

2'-0"2'-0"2'-0"

1'-6" 1'-3"

1'-3"

2'-0"2'-0"2'-0"

1'-3"1'-3"6"

2'-0"

1'-0"

SADDLE

4
12

SADDLE ON
OTHER SIDE OF

SUNROOM
BONUS ROOM

FLOOR LINE

8
12

3'
-8

" 5'-11"

BEAMS IN ROOM
11'-10"

EXTEND FOUNDATION
WALL AND FOOTING 6"

FOR POST BEARING

OBSCURE
GLASS

10" TRIM

METAL
CORNERS

METAL
CORNERS

METAL
CORNERS

6"
 T

RI
M

6"
 T

RI
M

6"
 T

RI
M

6"
 T

RI
M

6"
 T

RI
M

6"
 T

RI
M

6" TRIM

6" TRIM

6" TRIM
6" TRIM

6" TRIM

6" TRIM6" TRIM

6" TRIM 6" TRIM 6" TRIM

6" TRIM

8"
 T

RI
M

GUTTERS GUTTERS GUTTERS

GUTTERS

GUTTERS

GUTTERS GUTTERS

GUTTERS

D
O

W
N

SP
O

UT

D
O

W
N

SP
O

UT

D
O

W
N

SP
O

UT

D
O

W
N

SP
O

UT

D
O

W
N

SP
O

UT

D
O

W
N

SP
O

UT

D
O

W
N

SP
O

UT

5
12

5
12

3:12
SADDLE

BIRD'S
MOUTH

1'-3"

1'-0"

1'-3" 1'-3"

2'-0"

4
12

8
12

5
12

1'-0 1/2"

BALL
STORAGE

PLATE

6'
-6

 1
/8

"

MAIN
FLOOR

44
'-2

 5
/1

6"

2X6

SCALE :: 1" = 1'-0" (22X34)  
SCALE :: 12" = 1'-0" (11X17)

8" RAKE
1

FLASHING

ROOF
SHTG

SOFFIT
PANEL

3/4 X 10
XLD

3
4 x 1-1/2"

FURRING

A4

ELEVATIONS

BUILDERS LICENCE #BC004568

13432 HANSON BLVD. NW
ANDOVER, MINNESOTA 55304

763-421-5435

SHEET TITLE

DATE BY

DI
SC

LA
IM

ER
 ·

A
LL

 M
EA

SU
RE

M
EN

TS
 A

N
D

LO
C

A
TIO

N
S 

O
F 

O
BJ

EC
TS

 H
A

V
E 

BE
EN

 P
LA

C
ED

 A
S

A
C

C
UR

A
TE

LY
 A

S 
PO

SS
IB

LE
. S

O
M

E 
A

D
JU

ST
M

EN
TS

M
A

Y 
BE

 N
EC

ES
SA

RY
 IN

 T
HE

 A
C

TU
A

L 
C

O
N

ST
RU

C
TIO

N
D

UE
 T

O
 S

TR
UC

TU
RA

L 
FR

A
M

IN
G

 A
N

D
 O

TH
ER

 F
IE

LD
C

O
N

SI
D

ER
A

TIO
N

S.

WORKFLOW

SHEET NUMBER

DATE BYREVISIONS

C
O

PY
RI

G
HT

 N
O

TIC
E 

· T
HE

 F
LO

O
RP

LA
N

S 
A

N
D

EL
EV

A
TIO

N
S 

O
F 

A
LL

 H
A

N
SO

N
 B

UI
LD

ER
S,

 IN
C

.  
HO

M
ES

A
RE

 C
O

PY
RI

G
HT

ED
 B

Y 
D

EA
N

 H
A

N
SO

N
 D

BA
 H

A
N

SO
N

C
O

M
PA

N
IE

S,
 L

LC
. O

UR
 C

O
PY

RI
G

HT
S 

HA
V

E 
BE

EN
EN

FO
RC

ED
 A

N
D

 W
IL

L 
C

O
N

TIN
UE

 T
O

 B
E 

EN
FO

RC
ED

.
TH

ES
E 

PL
A

N
S 

M
A

Y 
N

O
T 

BE
 G

IV
EN

 T
O

 O
R 

US
ED

 B
Y

A
N

Y 
O

TH
ER

 P
ER

SO
N

 O
R 

C
O

M
PA

N
Y 

W
ITH

O
UT

W
RI

TT
EN

 P
ER

M
IS

SI
O

N
.

PL
O

T D
AT

E:
 1/
31

/2
02

4 
11

:3
7 

AM ·
© 

C
O

PY
RI

G
HT

 H
AN

SO
N 

C
O

M
PA

NI
ES

, L
LC

 
·

C
:\

Us
er

s\
C

hr
is 

Vo
ne

sh
\H

an
so

n 
Bu

ild
er

s D
ro

pb
ox

\G
ar

ris
on

 G
ro

us
tra

\0
5.

 D
ra

fti
ng

\0
1 

HB
I P

la
ns

\1
. 2

02
3 

HB
I P

ro
je

ct
s\

Ea
st 

Pr
es

er
ve

\8
 Sh

er
w

oo
d 

Tra
il -

 O
ak

m
on

t -
 B

ec
ke

r\
8 

Sh
er

w
oo

d 
Tra

il -
 O

ak
m

on
t -

 B
ec

ke
r

BE
C

KE
R 

RE
SID

EN
C

E
8 

SH
ER

W
O

O
D 

TR
A

IL
TR

AC
T G

EA
ST

 P
RE

SE
RV

E
NO

RT
H 

O
AK

S, 
M

N

O
A

KM
O

N
T

C
US

TO
M

MATCH CONTRACT
AMENDMENTS
FILE CHECK
PERMIT PLAN
FINAL PLANS

01/26/24
XX/XX/XX
XX/XX/XX
XX/XX/XX
03/21/23

KW
XX
XX
XX
KW

REVISION 1 XX/XX/XX XX

PLOT DATE: 1/31/2024

72



ELEVATION NOTES
FRONT:
1. 8 14" CEMENT BOARD SIDING (7" REVEAL)
2. 5 4"X6" TRIM BOARDS @ OPENINGS U.N.O.
3. SEE DETAIL 10/D4 FOR CORNERS U.N.O.
4. NOTE: FILL IN OPENINGS OVER ALL BRACKETS
5. SHIP FRONT DOOR W/ NO BRICK MOULD
6. BOARD & BATTEN @ 24" OC SPACING U.N.O.

SIDES AND REAR (PER NEIGHBORHOOD):
1. 8 14" CEMENT BOARD SIDING (7" REVEAL)
2. 5 4"X4" TRIM BOARDS @ OPENINGS U.N.O.
3. METAL CORNERS @ BACK U.N.O.

SIDE ELEVATION
SCALE :: 18" = 1'-0" (22X34)
SCALE :: 116" = 1'-0" (11X17)

12
12

UPPER FLOOR

6'
-1

 1
/8

"

1'-6"

10"

1'-3"

6
12

6
12

1'-3" 1'-3"

1'-3"

2'-0"1'-3"

2'-0"

1'-6"

15 1/4"

9"

4
12

BUILDOUT
& SADDLE
BETWEEN
GABLES

10" TRIM

2'-6"

10" TRIM

10" TRIM

10" TRIM

10" TRIM ON
THIS FACE

METAL
CORNERS

METAL
CORNERS

STONE
WRAP 18"

(HIDDEN BY
COLUMN)

6" TRIM

6" TRIM

6"
 T

RI
M

6"
 T

RI
M

8"
 T

RI
M

8" TRIM

GUTTERS

GUTTERS

GUTTERS GUTTERS

GUTTERS

D
O

W
N

SP
O

UT

1'-3"

MAIN
FLOOR

10
'-2

"

A4.1

ELEVATIONS

BUILDERS LICENCE #BC004568

13432 HANSON BLVD. NW
ANDOVER, MINNESOTA 55304

763-421-5435

SHEET TITLE

DATE BY

DI
SC

LA
IM

ER
 ·

A
LL

 M
EA

SU
RE

M
EN

TS
 A

N
D

LO
C

A
TIO

N
S 

O
F 

O
BJ

EC
TS

 H
A

V
E 

BE
EN

 P
LA

C
ED

 A
S

A
C

C
UR

A
TE

LY
 A

S 
PO

SS
IB

LE
. S

O
M

E 
A

D
JU

ST
M

EN
TS

M
A

Y 
BE

 N
EC

ES
SA

RY
 IN

 T
HE

 A
C

TU
A

L 
C

O
N

ST
RU

C
TIO

N
D

UE
 T

O
 S

TR
UC

TU
RA

L 
FR

A
M

IN
G

 A
N

D
 O

TH
ER

 F
IE

LD
C

O
N

SI
D

ER
A

TIO
N

S.

WORKFLOW

SHEET NUMBER

DATE BYREVISIONS

C
O

PY
RI

G
HT

 N
O

TIC
E 

· T
HE

 F
LO

O
RP

LA
N

S 
A

N
D

EL
EV

A
TIO

N
S 

O
F 

A
LL

 H
A

N
SO

N
 B

UI
LD

ER
S,

 IN
C

.  
HO

M
ES

A
RE

 C
O

PY
RI

G
HT

ED
 B

Y 
D

EA
N

 H
A

N
SO

N
 D

BA
 H

A
N

SO
N

C
O

M
PA

N
IE

S,
 L

LC
. O

UR
 C

O
PY

RI
G

HT
S 

HA
V

E 
BE

EN
EN

FO
RC

ED
 A

N
D

 W
IL

L 
C

O
N

TIN
UE

 T
O

 B
E 

EN
FO

RC
ED

.
TH

ES
E 

PL
A

N
S 

M
A

Y 
N

O
T 

BE
 G

IV
EN

 T
O

 O
R 

US
ED

 B
Y

A
N

Y 
O

TH
ER

 P
ER

SO
N

 O
R 

C
O

M
PA

N
Y 

W
ITH

O
UT

W
RI

TT
EN

 P
ER

M
IS

SI
O

N
.

PL
O

T D
AT

E:
 1/
31

/2
02

4 
11

:3
7 

AM ·
© 

C
O

PY
RI

G
HT

 H
AN

SO
N 

C
O

M
PA

NI
ES

, L
LC

 
·

C
:\

Us
er

s\
C

hr
is 

Vo
ne

sh
\H

an
so

n 
Bu

ild
er

s D
ro

pb
ox

\G
ar

ris
on

 G
ro

us
tra

\0
5.

 D
ra

fti
ng

\0
1 

HB
I P

la
ns

\1
. 2

02
3 

HB
I P

ro
je

ct
s\

Ea
st 

Pr
es

er
ve

\8
 Sh

er
w

oo
d 

Tra
il -

 O
ak

m
on

t -
 B

ec
ke

r\
8 

Sh
er

w
oo

d 
Tra

il -
 O

ak
m

on
t -

 B
ec

ke
r

BE
C

KE
R 

RE
SID

EN
C

E
8 

SH
ER

W
O

O
D 

TR
A

IL
TR

AC
T G

EA
ST

 P
RE

SE
RV

E
NO

RT
H 

O
AK

S, 
M

N

O
A

KM
O

N
T

C
US

TO
M

MATCH CONTRACT
AMENDMENTS
FILE CHECK
PERMIT PLAN
FINAL PLANS

01/26/24
XX/XX/XX
XX/XX/XX
XX/XX/XX
03/21/23

KW
XX
XX
XX
KW

REVISION 1 XX/XX/XX XX

PLOT DATE: 1/31/2024

73



74



February 14, 2024

Kendra Lindahl, AICP
City Planner

Via E-mail: KLindahl@landform.net

RE: 8 Sherwood Trail
Sambatek Project No. 51986

Dear Kendra: 

I have reviewed the Conditional Use Permit request for the overall building height for this parcel.

The proposed home location requires the driveway to be located between 2 existing wetlands.   
City Ordinance requires a 30-foot setback from all wetlands.  This condition cannot be met and I 
am recommending denial of this request.

Sincerely,
Sambatek, LLC

Michael J. Nielson, PE
City Engineer

CC: Kevin Kress, Administrator

75

mailto:KLindahl@landform.net


March 28, 2024

Planning Commission Members
City of North Oaks

Via E-mail C\O Kevin Kress, City Administrator
kkress@northoaksmn.com

Re: 8 Sherwood Trail - Variance Request
Sambatek Project No. 51986

Dear Commission Members:

I have reviewed the information provided by the applicant regarding the low floor elevation of 920.7 to meet the 
3’ High Water Separation and concur that elevation is necessary.   This does create a significant slope on the 
driveway of 13.8% as noted on the plan sheet.   The applicant is showing a 5.5% grade adjacent to the roadway 
as a landing or stopping area before entering the roadway to account for icy or snow-covered conditions.   While 
this helps with the stopping condition before entering the roadway, it also creates an 18.7% grade approaching 
the garage.  From my experience this is unsafe during winter conditions.

The industry standard for an acceptable driveway is a maximum of 10% with appropriate landing areas adjacent 
to the garage and roadway and we would not recommend a driveway with a 13.8% average grade. 

Respectfully Submitted, 
Sambatek, Inc.

Mike Nielson, PE
Municipal Practice Leader

Cc: Kevin Kress, City Administrator
Kendra Lindahl, City Planner

76

mailto:kkress@northoaksmn.com


April 18, 2024

Kendra Lindahl, AICP
City Planner

Via E-mail: KLindahl@landform.net

RE: 8 Sherwood Trail
Sambatek Project No. 51986

Dear Kendra: 

I have reviewed the request for Variance to the 30-foot wetland buffer setback and concur that 
this option provides a reasonable alternative use of this parcel.  

My previous review memo dated March 28, 2024, outlined the difficulties and safety concerns 
with the home located near the street due to the excessively steep driveway required for his 
alternative.  This alternative has been reviewed by the watershed (see memo from Brian 
Corcoran, Vadnais Lake Area WMO (VLAWMO).   Mr. Corcoran has not objection to either option 
presented. 

Based on the revised plan set reducing the width of the driveway located between wetland #7 & 
#9, I have no objection to the proposed home and driveway location.  

Sincerely,
Sambatek, LLC

Michael J. Nielson, PE
City Engineer

CC: Kevin Kress, Administrator

77

mailto:KLindahl@landform.net


  800 County Road E East, Vadnais Heights, MN 55127 
www.vlawmo.org 

 
 
 

TO:   Kevin Kress  

FROM:  Brian Corcoran Vadnais Lake Area WMO (VLAWMO) 

DATE:  March 9, 2023 

SUBJECT: Comments – 8 Sherwood Trail - Driveway 

Please find below, per your request, the VLAWMO “advisory” comments for 8 Sherwood Trail – Driveway, received 
3-8-2023.  These comments are advisory only given that VLAWMO does not operate a regulatory program for 
development review with exception of the Wetland Conservation Act (WCA). Our Water Management policy and 
standards have been adopted and are enforced by our respective City’s and Township.  

•  A MN Routine Assessment Method (MNRAM) worksheet was completed on 4/6/2020, which 
identifies management classes for each wetland on site. 8 Sherwood Trail wetlands (W9 & W7) are 
Manage 2 wetlands. Base buffer width of 30ft, Applied buffer with of 24ft. See below table: 

  
• Per the Buffer section in the Water Management Policy (chapter 11 “Buffers” starting on pg 26) The 

buffer width may vary based on demonstrated site constraints, provided that a width of at least 50 
percent of the applied buffer width is maintained (in this case that would be 12ft). See section 5 in 
chapter 11 Buffers. 

 

Brian Corcoran 

 

Management Class Base Buffer Width (ft)  Minimum Applied Buffer Width (ft) 
Manage 3: Storm Ponds 20 16 
Manage 2 30 24 
Manage 1 40 34 
Preserve 75 67 

78



  800 County Road E East, Vadnais Heights, MN 55127 
www.vlawmo.org 

 
 
 

TO:   Scott Hockert  

FROM:  Brian Corcoran Vadnais Lake Area WMO (VLAWMO) 

DATE:  April 12, 2024 

SUBJECT: Comments – Variance Request Narrative– 8 Sherwood Trail 

Please find below, per your request, the VLAWMO “advisory” comments for the Variance Request Narrative– 8 
Sherwood Trail received 4-12-2024.  These comments are advisory only given that VLAWMO does not operate a 
regulatory program for development review with exception of the Wetland Conservation Act (WCA). Our Water 
Management policy and standards have been adopted and are enforced by our respective City’s and Township.  

Two options have been proposed for providing driveway access to the back portion of Lot 8: 

• Option #1 initial submitted layout was with a 12’ wide driveway between wetland #9.  25’ setback 
from the westerly property line and 11’ buffer to wetland and utilizing wetland buffer averaging.  
 
- Per buffer rules adopted by the City Option #1 will work. Buffer width may vary based on 
demonstrated site constraints, provided that a width of at least 50 percent of the Applied Buffer 
Width is maintained at all points; there is no reduction in total buffer area; and the buffer provides 
wetland and habitat protection at least equivalent to a buffer of uniform Applied Buffer Width. For 
this option it is recommended that a minimum of 12’ buffer be utilized from driveway edge to 
wetland line to follow adopted buffer rules. Plan sheet Option #1 TRACT G, L7, EAST PRESERVE, 8 
SHERWOOD TRAIL - COS 032924[100] 
  

• Option #2 recent submitted layout is with the driveway between wetland #7 & wetland #9 reducing 
the driveway to 10’ in the wetland area, utilizing wetland buffer averaging and the VLAWMO’s 
minimum buffer of 12’ 
 
- Per buffer rules adopted by the City Option #2 will work. Buffer width may vary based on 
demonstrated site constraints, provided that a width of at least 50 percent of the Applied Buffer 
Width is maintained at all points; there is no reduction in total buffer area; and the buffer provides 
wetland and habitat protection at least equivalent to a buffer of uniform Applied Buffer Width. This 
option follows adopted rules and slightly increases overall buffer around both wetlands. Plan sheet 
Option #2 TRACT G, L7, EAST PRESERVE, 8 SHERWOOD TRAIL - COS 040524 
 

• It is recommended that Wetland Buffer Zone signs be placed around buffer areas.   

VLAWMO has no issues with either option outlined above for driveway access to the back portion of Lot 8. 

Thank you, 

 

Brian Corcoran 

79



  800 County Road E East, Vadnais Heights, MN 55127 
www.vlawmo.org 

 
 
 

80



WETLAND BUFFERS: THE BASICSWETLAND BUFFERS: THE BASICS

Why maintain a buffer? 
• Provide clean water by filtering and storing pollutants such as phosphorus.
• Support efficient drainage systems from culverts to streets. Buffers help  
    reduce sediment build-up downstream and the need for costly dredging. 
• Help prevent flood damage by enhancing storage during large rain events.
• Promote groundwater recharge instead of sending runoff to a neighbor.
• Enhance aesthetics and property value.
• Provide pollinator habitat and support the aquatic food chain. 

EXAMPLE: 
Most small wetlands and 

stormponds call for a buffer with 
an average of 20’ vegetative width 

and a minimum of 16’.
Visit vlawmo.org/wca-rules for regulations.

With a clear view and easy access to water, Geese can 
become a nuisance when no buffer exists. 

Buffers and shoreline restorations are great 
ways to protect water quality.

Vadnais Lake Area Water Management Organization |(651) 204-6070 | office@VLAWMO.org
Diagrams: The Kestrel Design Group, Inc. 

BUFFER SIZES:
Wetlands have different 

classifications depending on 
vegetative diversity and size. 
These factors create different 

recommendations for buffer sizes.

www.VLAWMO.org

A buffer is an area surrounding a wetland, pond, stream, or lake where plants are allowed to grow. 
When turfgrass or only rock surround a waterbody, pollution and sediment are are easily washed into them. 
Buffers help trap sediments and nutrients, keeping them on land before they can get to the waterbody. 
This benefits people in the form of clean, secure water resources and replenished groundwater for the future. 
If you live next to a waterbody, you’re the first and best protector of that resource for everyone downstream. 

VLAWMO staff and grant programs are availabe to help design and install buffers that beautify your property while also 
supporting the greater watershed. 

81



Sherwood.  We followed your suggested format of addressing code section 151.078 pertaining
to variances and provided as much supporting information and visuals as we thought
necessary to address the practical difficulties of building on this lot.
 
Take a look and let us know if you have any questions or suggestions before compiling this
packet for the next planning commission meeting
 
Thanks for your help so far
 
SCOTT HOCKERT
VP of Production

952.452.4793  |  hansonbuilders.com

13432 Hanson Blvd NW, Andover, MN 55304

    
 

From: Scott Hockert <Scott@hansonbuilders.com>
Date: Tuesday, March 5, 2024 at 2:25 PM
To: Kendra Lindahl, AICP <KLindahl@landform.net>
Cc: Kevin Kress (kkress@northoaksmn.gov) <KKress@northoaksmn.gov>
Subject: Re: 8 Sherwood

Below is the email communication from Bill Long pertaining to the tree agreement.  I’ll follow
up with the revised narrative
 
Good Afternoon Everyone, 
 
I want to update you on the plan that NOHOA has agreed to with Hanson Builders in the Sherwood Trail area.
 

1. NOHOA and Hanson Builders have agreed that Hanson will plant a total of twenty trees, each of a
minimum 2.5 inch diameter at breast height, on the five lots that Hanson acquired from the North
Oaks Company on Sherwood Trail in North Oaks.

2. Tentatively, these trees will be planted on Sherwood lots 1,2, 8 and 12. Taking a closer look at the
topography of the area and where the most ash trees were lost, we think planting along the west side
of lots 1 and 2 along Sherwood Road will improve screening for the entire area. Planting trees on the
south sides of lots 8 and 12 will ensure some screening of the homes on Red Maple Lane. Since lot 4
basically backs up to a wetland, we didn't feel the need to screen that area.

3. Hanson to consult with Steve Nicholson, a certified forester, of TreeBiz LLC on species selection and
exact locations of the plantings to optimize their benefit. The locations, but not the total number of
trees to be planted, may be modified based on Mr. Nicholson's input.

4. Neighbors on Sherwood Trail and Red Maple Lane are encouraged to collaborate with Hanson in

82

tel:612.321.6062
https://linklock.titanhq.com/analyse?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.hansonbuilders.com%2F&data=eJxLtjUzMjc0S01NtDA0NTBUS7HNScxLScsvytXLSy1Ry7UtzE4JdM4qN9N1LzRQK7YtTs4vKVE1MchIzCvOz0sqzcxJSS0q1kvOz1UrsvX2ycxLSczIAcqjmFJqm1FSUlCsauyoauQGROXl5XqYBgAlADraMJM%25
https://linklock.titanhq.com/analyse?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.facebook.com%2Fhansonbuildersinc%2F&data=eJxVjLEOwiAURb8GNglURRcG00QHXfwECjRg4T0LNPy-ODa507k5xyg5XIR0Tl_FmQtqVdRgZ8yJgas0qXWx7_HT5OGxclpUMVgrOXGvoSBMW4jW5cIMJprV8xXAah_7v6tsytf6LeR4I8O9r7XGZm3chLj81Y72vQCmsx8DvTWk
https://linklock.titanhq.com/analyse?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.instagram.com%2Fhansonbuilders%2F&data=eJxVjLsOAiEQRb9m6SSwKtpMYUy00MZPGAEFl4cLs-H3xXKTW52bczSo8SCVtXiUeyGZgYDJvHKJPFliEebJPM6fpjbXWbAKVWeiYSccpprTc_HB2FK5zpEVuN19MuhC_1eVBRzRtw7b0zBe-lpr3KdK-C4Y_25n62AHP5yrNPY%25
https://linklock.titanhq.com/analyse?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.linkedin.com%2Fcompany%2Fhanson-builders-inc%2F&data=eJxVjMEKAiEYhJ9Gb4puZV08xEId6tIjmBra6u-uukhvnxEdgmEYZphPSzHsubBWHfiOcWxkUGAeKUcKtuIol8ncxmcT5LwwXGTRqVa0ZU5BSXBffTA2F6pTxFlerh6McqHvf5RVulrngjZHNJy6Wms0eJis8fC59qr7rODV05dMfmjiQff2DZ9yOaY%25
mailto:Scott@hansonbuilders.com
mailto:KLindahl@landform.net
mailto:kkress@northoaksmn.gov
mailto:KKress@northoaksmn.gov


planting additional trees at the neighbors' expense on their own properties to help mitigate the loss of
so many ash trees in the area to Emerald Ash Borer.

5. NOHOA (Bill Long and Julia Hupperts,) can assist in coordinating a walkthrough of the area with
Hanson, TreeBiz and neighbors in the area as the tree plan is finalized.

 
Also, though this wasn't part of the agreement, NOHOA is trying to find a way to get better pricing on trees to
be planted in this area. With such a large number going in to a single neighborhood, we may be able to get a
discount.  Please let me know if you have any questions or concerns. I will keep you posted as to next steps
and timing.
 
Bill
 
Bill Long
NOHOA Secretary
BODLong@nohoa.org
651-276-4392

 
 
SCOTT HOCKERT
VP of Production

952.452.4793  |  hansonbuilders.com

13432 Hanson Blvd NW, Andover, MN 55304

    
 

From: Kendra Lindahl, AICP <KLindahl@landform.net>
Date: Tuesday, March 5, 2024 at 1:43 PM
To: Scott Hockert <Scott@hansonbuilders.com>
Cc: Kevin Kress (kkress@northoaksmn.gov) <KKress@northoaksmn.gov>
Subject: RE: 8 Sherwood

Scott,
 
Yes, please share whatever information you have about the tree removal and restoration
agreement.  It may help head off further discussion at the Council.
 
If you can get your narrative in by the end of the week, that would be great.
 
We are only going to have 3 council members at the 3/14 meeting, so we will push all of the
planning items to the April 11th Council meeting.

83

mailto:BODLong@nohoa.org
tel:612.321.6062
https://linklock.titanhq.com/analyse?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.hansonbuilders.com%2F&data=eJxLtjUzMjc0S01NtDA0NTBUS7HNScxLScsvytXLSy1Ry7UtzE4JdM4qN9N1LzRQK7YtTs4vKVE1MchIzCvOz0sqzcxJSS0q1kvOz1UrsvX2ycxLSczIAcqjmFJqm1FSUlCsauyoauQGROXl5XqYBgAlADraMJM%25
https://linklock.titanhq.com/analyse?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.facebook.com%2Fhansonbuildersinc%2F&data=eJxVjLEOwiAURb8GNglURRcG00QHXfwECjRg4T0LNPy-ODa507k5xyg5XIR0Tl_FmQtqVdRgZ8yJgas0qXWx7_HT5OGxclpUMVgrOXGvoSBMW4jW5cIMJprV8xXAah_7v6tsytf6LeR4I8O9r7XGZm3chLj81Y72vQCmsx8DvTWk
https://linklock.titanhq.com/analyse?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.instagram.com%2Fhansonbuilders%2F&data=eJxVjLsOAiEQRb9m6SSwKtpMYUy00MZPGAEFl4cLs-H3xXKTW52bczSo8SCVtXiUeyGZgYDJvHKJPFliEebJPM6fpjbXWbAKVWeiYSccpprTc_HB2FK5zpEVuN19MuhC_1eVBRzRtw7b0zBe-lpr3KdK-C4Y_25n62AHP5yrNPY%25
https://linklock.titanhq.com/analyse?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.linkedin.com%2Fcompany%2Fhanson-builders-inc%2F&data=eJxVjMEKAiEYhJ9Gb4puZV08xEId6tIjmBra6u-uukhvnxEdgmEYZphPSzHsubBWHfiOcWxkUGAeKUcKtuIol8ncxmcT5LwwXGTRqVa0ZU5BSXBffTA2F6pTxFlerh6McqHvf5RVulrngjZHNJy6Wms0eJis8fC59qr7rODV05dMfmjiQff2DZ9yOaY%25
mailto:KLindahl@landform.net
mailto:Scott@hansonbuilders.com
mailto:kkress@northoaksmn.gov
mailto:KKress@northoaksmn.gov


1

Kendra Lindahl, AICP

Subject: FW: 8 Sherwood Trail Variance - March 28th Planning Commission Meeting

 

From: Guanzini, Amanda <aguanzini@deloitte.com>  

Sent: Tuesday, March 26, 2024 10:29 AM 

To: Kevin Kress <kkress@northoaksmn.gov> 

Cc: guanzini.steven@gmail.com 

Subject: 8 Sherwood Trail Variance - March 28th Planning Commission Meeting 

 

Caution: This email originated outside our organization; please use caution.  

 

Hi Kevin – Thanks for your voicemail. Can you give this to the chair to read as part of the planning commission 

documents for the March 28, 2024 meeting as it relates to the variance request for 8 Sherwood Trail?   

 

Thank you, 

Amanda Guanzini 

 

 

We understand that there has been a variance request for the home to be built at 8 Sherwood Trail. As residents that 

recently built at 6 Sherwood Trail, we had also previously requested a variance in order to build a house with a walkout 

basement. Our variance request was denied and we modified our building plans so that it was more naturally suited to 

the lot as requested by the Planning Commission and City Council.  

 

In addition, we understand that there is a variance requested for the driveway to be within 25 feet of the property line 

on the side of the property adjacent to our lot.  After all of the trees and brush have been removed from the property at 

8 Sherwood Trail, there is less of a buffer between the properties. The previously wooded lots in the Nord development, 

and North Oaks in general, was a significant draw to the purchase of our lot. An approved variance to the current set 

back requirements, would amplify the loss of that privacy due to the recent tree and brush removal. 

 

 

 

Amanda Guanzini  

Audit Partner | Audit & Enterprise Risk Services  
Deloitte & Touche LLP  
Tel: 612 397 4635  
www.deloitte.com 

 

This message (including any attachments) contains confidential information intended for a specific 

individual and purpose, and is protected by law. If you are not the intended recipient, you should delete 

this message and any disclosure, copying, or distribution of this message, or the taking of any action 

based on it, by you is strictly prohibited. 

 You don't often get email from aguanzini@deloitte.com. Learn why this is important  

84



2

Deloitte refers to a Deloitte member firm, one of its related entities, or Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited 

("DTTL"). Each Deloitte member firm is a separate legal entity and a member of DTTL. DTTL does not 

provide services to clients. Please see www.deloitte.com/about to learn more. 

v.E.1 

85



CITY OF NORTH OAKS 
RAMSEY COUNTY, MINNESOTA 

RESOLUTION NO. _____ 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR BUILDING 
HEIGHT IN EXCESS OF 35 FEET AT 8 SHERWOOD TRAIL 

 
 WHEREAS, an application for a Conditional Use Permit has been submitted by 
Mark Englund of Hanson Builders for the real property located at 8 Sherwood Trail, North 
Oaks, Ramsey, County, Minnesota, and legally described on the attached EXHIBIT A (the 
“Property”); and  
 
 WHEREAS, a Conditional Use Permit is required for a home in excess of 35 feet 
in height; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the request has been reviewed against the relevant requirements of 
North Oaks Zoning Ordinance Sections 151.051 and 151.076, regarding the criteria for 
issuance of a Conditional Use Permit, and meets the minimum standards, is consistent with 
the Comprehensive Plan, is in conformance with the Zoning Ordinance, and does not have 
a negative impact on public health, safety, or welfare; and 
 
 WHEREAS, a public hearing concerning the Conditional Use Permit was held 
before the North Oaks Planning Commission in accordance with Minnesota Statutes, 
Section 462.357, subd. 3, on February 29, 2024, which was continued to subsequent 
meetings on March 28, 2024 and April 25, 2024, after which hearing the Planning 
Commission voted 6-0 to recommend approval of the Conditional Use Permit application, 
subject to certain conditions. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF NORTH OAKS, that a Conditional Use Permit to exceed a 35-foot building height, is 
approved for the Property subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. The home shall be constructed in accordance with the plans sets received on 
January 25, 2024 and shall have a maximum height as shown on the plans of 
44.2 feet. 

 
2. The building must be constructed so that it has a 3-foot minimum elevation 

difference from the basement finished floor elevation to the groundwater 
elevation, as determined by a geotechnical engineer by a soils investigation. 

 
3. A variance must be obtained for the driveway to access the house. The house 

may not be constructed unless a variance is first approved for the driveway to 
access the house at the location of the house shown on the plan set.  

 

86



 2 

4. The conditions of Title 151.027(D)2 (land reclamation) shall be satisfied before 
the issuance of a building permit. The building permit application shall contain 
an erosion and sediment control plan.  

 
5. Tree disturbance should be strategically completed and remaining trees abutting 

construction disturbance areas shall have tree protection barriers installed at the 
dripline.  

 
6. Erosion control shall be in place prior to the beginning of construction.  
 

a. Erosion control measures such as silt fence must be installed 
downstream of all proposed grading, in order to ensure proper 
containment of sedimentation on site. Extra care shall be taken to 
maintain all existing erosion control measures to ensure sedimentation 
due to grading activities is not tracked off site. 

b. Applicant shall ensure that grading and filling work does not result in 
the deposit of additional stormwater runoff onto adjacent properties. 

 
7. Plans shall be approved by the Building Official prior to the commencement of 

construction.  
a. Plans must be in compliance with the maximum 12% FAR requirement 

at the time of review by the Building Official. If plans exceed the 12% 
FAR requirement, the applicant shall: 

i. Revise plans to comply with the 12% FAR requirement; or 
ii. Request a variance from the 12% FAR requirement before a 

building permit may be issued. 
 

8. Any outstanding fees shall be paid prior to the issuance of a building permit.  
 

9. The applicant shall comply with all applicable local, state and watershed district 
rules and regulations. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Clerk, Deputy City Clerk, or City Attorney 
are hereby authorized and directed to record a certified copy of this Resolution with the 
Ramsey County Registrar of Titles. 
 
Adopted by the City Council of the City of North Oaks this 9th day of May, 2024. 
      
 
 
      By:  ________________________________  
       Krista Wolter 
      Its: Mayor 
 
 
 

87

https://www.northoaksmn.gov/node/475


 3 

Attested: 
 
 
 
By:  ________________________________  
 Kevin Kress 
Its: City Administrator 

88



 4 

EXHIBIT A 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY 

 
Real property located in Ramsey County, Minnesota legally described as follows: 

 
Tract J, Registered Land Survey No. 634, Ramsey County, Minnesota. 
 
PIN: 063022130014 
 

89



 
 

1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024- ____ 
 

CITY OF NORTH OAKS 
RAMSEY COUNTY, MINNESOTA 

 
RESOLUTION GRANTING SETBACK VARIANCE TO ALLOW DRIVEWAY TO BE 

LOCATED WITHIN WETLAND BUFFER AND SETBACK AREAS AND WITHIN 25 FEET OF 
A SIDE YARD LOT LINE 

 
WHEREAS, the City of North Oaks (City) has received an application for a variance for the 

property located at 8 Sherwood Trail and legally described on the attached Exhibit A to allow a driveway 
to be located within thirty (30) feet of a wetland (11-foot setback from Wetland # 9) and within the wetland 
setback area, and within twenty-five feet of the side yard lot line as shown on the attached Exhibit B; and   
 

WHEREAS, the variance would allow a house to be constructed towards the rear of the Property, 
instead of at the front of the property where the driveway grades would be unacceptably steep; and   

 
WHEREAS, as part of its consideration of the variance application, the Planning Commission 

directed the applicant to submit an alternative option for placement of the driveway on the lot that would 
have routed the driveway through the middle of the lot, between the two existing wetlands, which the 
applicant did; however a review of that alternative driveway location revealed that a greater wetland-related 
variance would be required if the driveway were placed at the alternative location; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission reviewed the request at a duly called public meeting and  

following public hearings on March 28, 2024 and April 25, 2024, ultimately voted 4-2 to recommend 
approval of the variances, subject to certain conditions; and  

 
WHEREAS, on May 1, 2024, the applicant submitted a revised plan which showed a reduced 

driveway width (10 feet instead of 12 feet at its narrowest point) and two 5,000 square foot septic sites.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of North Oaks that the 
requested variances are hereby approved as detailed below, subject to the following conditions and findings: 

 
1. A variance to allow a driveway to be located within thirty (30) feet of a wetland and within the 

wetland buffer area as shown on the attached Exhibit B is hereby approved, subject to the 
following CONDITIONS: 
 

a. The driveway shall be constructed in the location as shown on Exhibit B. 
 

b. Additional wetland buffering and mitigation shall be established as shown on Exhibit 
B. 

 
c. Wetland buffer signs acceptable to the City shall be placed on the Property at the 

locations shown in Exhibit B. 
 

d. The driveway shall not exceed 10 feet in width at any location where the driveway 
encroaches into the wetland setback areas and the side yard setback as shown on 
Exhibit B. 

 

90



 
 

2 
 

e. Before a building permit may be issued, the applicant must provide a septic report with 
supporting documentation from a licensed SSTS professional or a variance would need 
to be requested.    
 
 

2. The Council finds that the standards in Section 151.078 of the Zoning Code and Minnesota 
Statutes, Section 462.357, subd. 6 for granting a variance have been met and hereby makes the 
following findings of fact related to the variance application: 

 
a. Practical difficulties exist which justify the granting of the variance, as further detailed 

herein. 
 

b. The requested variance is in harmony with the purposes and intent of the City’s zoning 
ordinance.  
 

c. The requested variance is consistent with the City’s comprehensive plan.  
 

d. The property owner proposes to use the Property in a reasonable manner: the property 
is intended to accommodate a single-family residence and allowing the proposed house 
to be located at the rear of the lot is consistent with other lots in the neighborhood, 
avoids the need to construct a smaller house at the front of the lot or building the 
proposed house at the front of the lot with excessively steep driveway grades.  

 
e. There are unique circumstances to the property not created by the landowner: the 

existing wetlands on the lot create a constraint on reasonable development of the lot 
that were note created by the current owner, as the lot was platted by a previous owner. 

 
f. The variance will maintain the essential character of the locality because it will allow 

the construction of a house that is consistent with other houses in the neighborhood, 
and will comply with the spirit and intent of the Zoning Ordinance.  

 
g. Strict enforcement would cause practical difficulties because of circumstances unique 

to the individual land under consideration; namely, the existence of two wetlands in 
the middle of the lot.  
 

h. The variance is not based on economic considerations alone. 
 

i. The variance would not allow a use that is not permitted by City Code. 
 

j. The circumstances of this site do not apply to other properties in same zone and are the 
result of the existing lot lines, topography and existing conditions on this lot.  
 

k. The proposed use is reasonable. It will allow construction of a house of similar stature 
to those around it.   
 

l. The circumstances do not result from the action of the applicant. The current lot owner 
did not plat the property. 
 

91



 
 

3 
 

m. Granting the variance will not confer upon the applicant any special privilege. It will 
merely allow them to construct a house and driveway of a similar nature to those in the 
immediate area.  
 

n. The variance is the minimum action needed to alleviate the practical difficulties on 
site: the Planning Commission directed the applicant to prepare an alternative option 
that would have routed the driveway through the middle of the lot and between the two 
wetlands; a review of that option showed that it would actually require a greater 
variance than the option of routing the driveway along the wester lot line proposed by 
the applicant.  
 

o. The proposed variance will not impair an adequate supply of light and air to adjacent 
land, or substantially increase the congestion of the roads and streets, or increase the 
danger of fire, or endanger the public safety, or substantially diminish or impair 
property values within the neighborhood. 
 

p. At no time after the land became nonconforming was the property under common 
ownership with contiguous land, the combination of which could have been used to 
reduce or avoid the nonconformity of the land.  
 

 
Adopted by the City Council of the City of North Oaks on this 9th day of May, 2024. 
 
 
Ayes:    Nays: 
     
      By:  ________________________________  
       Krista Wolter 
      Its: Mayor 
Attested: 
 
 
By:  ________________________________  
 Kevin Kress 
Its: City Administrator/City Clerk 
  

92



 
 

4 
 

EXHIBIT A 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY 

 
Real property located in Ramsey County, Minnesota legally described as follows: 

 
Tract G, Registered Land Survey No. 634, Ramsey County, Minnesota. 
 
Parcel ID: 063022130011 
 
 
  

93



 
 

5 
 

EXHIBIT B 
DEPICTION OF LOCATION OF DRIVEWAY

 

94



 

 

PLANNING REPORT  

TO:  North Oaks City Council 
 
FROM: Kendra Lindahl, City Planner 

Kevin Kress, City Administrator 
Bridget Nason, City Attorney 

 
DATE:  May 4, 2024 
 
RE: Amending City Code Title XV, Chapter 151, Regarding Garage 

Definitions And  Garage Size Standards 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 
 
The Planning Commission held a public hearing at their February 29, 2024 meeting. There was one 
resident who spoke at the public hearing in support of the increase to 2,000 sq. ft. 
 
The Commission had discussion about whether increasing the maximum garage size was adequate or 
whether larger garages should be allowed. Four of the Commissioners suggested a larger size would be 
appropriate (both 2,500 and 3,000 sq. ft. were suggested). There was also discussion of whether this 
should simply be permitted by right rather than by conditional use permit since requests are typically 
approved. After debate, the Commission did not make any changes. The Commission voted 6-1 to 
recommend approval of the ordinance as drafted.  
 
BACKGROUND 
 
A working group made up of Chair Cremons, Council member Azman and staff is meeting monthly to 
address a number of zoning ordinance sections that have been identified by staff, the Planning 
Commission and City Council as in need of review and potential amendment. Staff will bring individual 
items to the Planning Commission on a regular basis to present amendments for consideration. This 
month we are bringing garage size back for discussion.  
 
The Planning Commission reviewed this item at the September 28th meeting, the October 26th meeting 
and the November 30th meeting. The draft ordinance was developed by the working group based on 
Planning Commission feedback. 
 
ISSUES AND ANALYSIS 
 
The City requires a conditional use permit for garages exceeding 1,500 sq. ft. 
 
City Code Section 151.005 defines a garage as “An accessory building or accessory portion of the main 
building which shall not exceed 1,500 square feet.”  

95



 

 

 
Since 2015, the City has received 15 applications for a conditional use permit to exceed this limit.  Only 
one of those applications has been denied. If the City is comfortable with larger garages (as the history 
suggests), it is time to consider modifying the standards to reflect the current market and the City’s 
comfort with larger garages. 
 
It is important to ensure that garages are in scale with the home to avoid the appearance of a garage 
with an attached house. There are a number of tools available to manage garage size including limits to 
the square footage or front elevation.  
 
Definitions 
  
The current City Code definitions should not include performance standards. Staff recommends the 
following changes with underlined text for the proposed additions to the City Code and struck through 
text for the deletions: 
 

ACCESSORY BUILDING, STRUCTURE, OR USE. A subordinate building, structure, or use 
which is located on the same lot on which the main building or principal use is situated and which 
is reasonably necessary and incidental to the conduct of the primary use of the main building or 
principal use. 

CARPORT. An area serving the same purpose as a garage as defined herein, but not entirely 
enclosed with walls.  

GARAGE, PRIVATE. An accessory building or accessory portion of the main building  which is 
intended for and used to store the private passenger vehicles, boats, RVs, or other similar items 
of the owners and/or tenants who reside upon the premiseswhich shall not exceed 1,500 square 
feet. 
 
PRINCIPAL BUILDING OR USE. The main use of land or buildings as distinguished from 
subordinate or accessory uses. A PRINCIPAL USE may be either permitted or conditional. 

 
Garage Size Discussion 

 
The following language is recommended by the working group for approval. The draft language shows 
underlined text for the proposed additions to the City Code and struck through text for the deletions. 
 
Section 151.050(C) of the City Code (permitted accessory uses): 

 
(C) Permitted accessory uses. The following accessory uses shall be permitted:  

(1) Attached or detached private garage and private carport facilities, and other accessory buildings 
or structures, provided the structurebuildings are constructed in the same architectural style as 
the principal building or structure.  and provided that tThe combined facilities square footage of 

96



 

 

all accessory buildings, structures, and any private garages shall not exceed 1,5002,000 square 
feet;  

(2) Private tennis courts and swimming pools, which are maintained for the enjoyment and 
convenience of the resident of the principal use and their guests;  

(3) Buildings and uses accessory to the principal use, small tool houses, sheds for storage of 
domestic supplies, and noncommercial recreation equipment, provided the structurebuildings 
are constructed in the same architectural style as the principal building or structure, but 
accessory dwelling units shall not be permitted;  

(4) Noncommercial greenhouses; and  
(5) Signs showing residents’ name and/or address identification not to exceed 2 square feet and 1 

real estate sale sign not to exceed 8 square feet. 
 
 
Section 151.050 (D)9 of the City Code (conditional uses) would be revised as follows: 

 
(9) Garages which exceeds 1,5002,000 square feet, provided that:  

(a)The garage shall not exceed 3,000 square feet;  

(b)The garage shall be constructed in the same architectural style as the principal building 
or structure;  

(c)The square footage of floor area of the garage will be included in the calculation of the 
floor area ratio for the property. The floor area ratio shall not exceed 0.12 or the 
maximum floor area ratio permitted by the applicable zoning ordinance provisions or 
other official controls;  

(d)No use of the garage shall be permitted other than for private residential or other usual  
noncommercial garage uses; and  

(e)The factors set forth in § 151.076(C) shall be considered. 

 

Attached for reference: 

Exhibit A: Draft Ordinance amending Chapter 151 

Exhibit B: Zoning Map 

 
 

97



 

 

ACTION REQUESTED 
 
Move to adopt the Resolution approving the Ordinance amending City Code Title XV, Chapter 
151, regarding garage definitions and  garage size standards, as recommended by the Planning 
Commission. 
 

98



 

 

CITY OF NORTH OAKS 
RAMSEY COUNTY, MINNESOTA 

ORDINANCE NO. ____ 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CITY CODE TITLE XV, CHAPTER 151, REGARDING 
GARAGE SIZE 

 

 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH OAKS ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 

Section One.  Title XV, Chapter 151 Amendment:  Title XV, Chapter 151.005, of the 
North Oaks City Code is hereby amended as follows. The underlined text shows the proposed 
additions to the City Code and the struck through text shows the deletions: 

GARAGE, PRIVATE. An accessory building or accessory portion of the main building  
which is intended for and used to store the private passenger vehicles, boats, RVs, or other 
similar items of the owners and/or tenants who reside upon the premiseswhich shall not 
exceed 1,500 square feet. 

 

Section Two.  Title XV, Chapter 151 Amendment:  Title XV, Chapter 151, Section 
151.050(C) of the North Oaks City Code is hereby amended as follows. The underlined text shows 
the proposed additions to the City Code and the struck through text shows the deletions: 

(C) Permitted accessory uses. The following accessory uses shall be permitted:  
(1) Attached or detached private garage and private carport facilities, and other 

accessory buildings or structures, provided the structurebuildings are constructed 
in the same architectural style as the principal building or structure.  and provided 
that tThe combined facilities square footage of all accessory buildings, structures, 
and any private garages shall not exceed 1,5002,000 square feet;  

(2) Private tennis courts and swimming pools, which are maintained for the enjoyment 
and convenience of the resident of the principal use and their guests;  

(3) Buildings and uses accessory to the principal use, small tool houses, sheds for 
storage of domestic supplies, and noncommercial recreation equipment, provided 
the structurebuildings are constructed in the same architectural style as the principal 
building or structure, but accessory dwelling units shall not be permitted;  

(4) Noncommercial greenhouses; and  
(5) Signs showing residents’ name and/or address identification not to exceed 2 square 

feet and 1 real estate sale sign not to exceed 8 square feet. 
 
 

99



 

 

Section Three.  Title XV, Chapter 151, Section 151.052  Amendment:  Title XV, Chapter 
151, 151.050 (D)9 of the North Oaks City Code is hereby amended  as follows. The underlined 
text shows the proposed additions to the City Code and the struck through text shows the deletions: 

 
(9) Garages which exceeds 1,5002,000 square feet, provided that:  
(a) The garage shall not exceed 3,000 square feet;  
(b) The garage shall be constructed in the same architectural style as the principal 

building or structure;  
(c) The square footage of floor area of the garage will be included in the calculation of 

the floor area ratio for the property. The floor area ratio shall not exceed 0.12 or the 
maximum floor area ratio permitted by the applicable zoning ordinance provisions 
or other official controls;  

(d) No use of the garage shall be permitted other than for private residential or other 
usual  noncommercial garage uses; and  

(e) The factors set forth in § 151.076(C) shall be considered. 
 
 

Section Four.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect upon its 
adoption and publication as provided by law. 

 

Passed in regular session of the City Council on the ____day of _______________, 2024. 

 

      CITY OF NORTH OAKS 

 

 

      By:  ________________________________  

       Krista Wolter, Mayor 

 

Attested: 

 

 

By:  ________________________________  

 Kevin Kress 
City Administrator/City Clerk 

 

100



 

 

(Published in the Shoreview Press on ___________, 2024) 

101



Ash St

Highway 96

H
od

gs
on

 R
d

C
en

te
rv

ill
e 

R
d

Turtle Lake Rd

H
odgson Rd

I-
35

E

Sherwood Rd

Pleasant Lake

Gilfillan Lake

Deep Lake

Wilkinson Lake

Charley Lake

Black Lake

Teal
Pond

North
Mallard

Pond

South
Mallard

Pond

BOBO
LIN

K
L

N

SHADOW LN

SOUTH LONG LAKE T R

B
L U

EBIRD
LN

ISLA

N
D

RD

W
EST PLEASANT LAKE RD

WH ITE OAKS

LN

TH
RU

SH
 L

N

BASSWOOD LN

LO

ST
RO

C
K

L
N

EASTVIEW  LN

LO
N

G

VI EW LN

H
AY

C
A

M
P

R
D

B
L

U
E

C

R A NE LN

N
O

R
D

C
IR

C
L

E
R

D

R
E

D
M

APLE LN

A
SPEN

LN

N
O

RD

CIR
CLE

RD

NORD  CIRCLE  RD

NORTH DEEP LA KE RD

C
H

IC
K

A
D

E E
L

N

S
O

U
T

H
D

EEP
LAKE RD

WISHBONE
LN

CHARL EY
LAKE CT

L
A

K
E

C
T

L
A

K
E

B
A

Y

WEST LAKE DR

PE
T

ER
SO

N
   

PL

W
ILDFLO W ER WAY

ANEMONE

CIR

L
O

NG
M AR SH LN

CHARLES   LAKE   RD

HACKBER
RY

LN

C
R

EE
K

SID
E  LN

W
IL

DFLOWER

P L B
L

A
CK

OAK RD

GOLDFINCHLN

IR
O

N

W
OOD LN

ISL AN D
VIE

W
LN

CROCUS  LN

RE
D

  F
O

X
  R

D

R E D FOX RD

PARTRIDGE
LN

S AN

D
P

IP
E

R
LN

SN
O

W
Y O W

L
LN

NUTHATCH LN

CATBIRD CIR

HTS

R
E

D
F

O
R

E
S

T
L

N

N
O

R
T

H
O

A
K

S
R

D

H AW
K

L
N B

L
U

E
FL

A
G

C
T

FALCON LN

C
A

T
B

IR
D

LN

N
O

RT
H

O
A

K
S

R
D

W
O

O
DHILL LN

W
IL

K
IN

S
O

N
  L

K
  B

L
V

D

PHOEBE  LN

W
IL

K
IN

S
O

N
  L

N

E
A

S
T

P
L

E
A

SA
N

T
LA

K
E

R
D

BENT TREE
LN

O
R

IO
L

E
LN

PHEASANT LN

EAST OAKS RD

DEER
HILLS
CT

D
E

ER

HILLS DRIVE

WHIT E P IN

E
RD

P
IN

E
 C

O
N

E
 R

D

M
ARSH

 RDG

LARCH LN

K

N
O L L

R
D

PIN
E

RD

PEARSON
PL

O
T

T
E

R
  LN

C
H

IP
M

U
N

K
 L

N

BA
D

G
ER

   
LN

SKI   
LN

SKILLM
AN

LN

B

UFFALO

R
D

DOVE LN

ROBB FARM RD

HERO
N

L
N

W
E

S
T

S
H

O
R

E
R

D

TH

O
M

P
SO

N
LN

BIR
CH

LN

Q U A

IL
L

N

SWALLOW LN

SUMMIT
HEIGHTS

SUMMIT
VIEW

SUMMIT LANE

SUMMIT
COURT

SUMMIT
CROSING

SUMMIT RIDGE DR

M

ALLARD LN

ROBB  F
ARM  R

D

BLUE G OOSE RD

L
ILY

P
O

N
D

R

D

W
R

EN
L

N

EAST GILFILLAN  RD

D
U

CK
PA

SS
R

D

TEAL
ISLAND RD

SQUIRREL LN

D
U

C
K

PA
S

S

RD

M
O

N
A

RC
H

 W
A

Y

CRESCENT LN

LE A F WING D R

RID GE

RD

MARTIN LN

RID
G

E
RD

MEADO W

LN

WILLOW RD

E
V

E
R

G
R

E
E

N
L

N

L
A

RKS P U R LN

L
A

R
K

SP
U

R
L

N

P
L

E
A

S
A

N
T

  L
A

K
E

  R
D

 

R
A

V
EN

R
D

S
U

N

SHINE
LN

R
A

V
E

N
R

D

OVERHILL DR

EAST
PLEASANT

LA
K

E
R

D

DOG

W
O

O
D

L
N

W
O

O
D

D
U

C
K

LN

E
A

G
L

E
R

I D
G

E
R

D

D
E

E
R

L
N

N
O

R
T

H
  O

A
K

S
  R

D

S
U

N
SE

T
LN

BUFFALO RD

R
A

C
C

O

ON RD

SPARROW
LN

P
H

E
A

SA
N

T
LN

G
A

DW
A

LL
LN

C
A

RD
IN

A
L

LN

EA
ST

O
A

K
S

R
D

P O

PLA
R L N

TH
O

M
P

SO
N

L
N

B
LU

E
JAY

LN

BLUE SPRUCE
CT

E
V

E
R

G
R

E
E

N
R

D

C
O

LU
M

B
IN

E
L

N

EVERG
REEN CT

HILL 
FARM 
CT

HILL FARM CIR

HILL  FARM   CIR

WEST PLEASANT LAKE
RD

SPR
I NG MARSH

LN

RED PINE RD

RE
D

 P
IN

E 
 L

N

LAWTON LN

CAPAUL

W
OODS CT

BRA
IN

A
R

D
W

A
Y

F
O

S
T

E
R

PL

VILLAGE

C
EN

T
E

R
D

R

E
D

G
E

W
ATER

LN

B
U

C
H

A
L

HEIGH
TS

O
SP

R
E

Y
C

T

C
AT

B
I R

D
L

N

EAST
PLEASAN

T
LA

K
E

R
D

W
E

S
T

P
L

EA
SA

NT
LAKE

R
D

P
R

E
SE

R
V

E
TR

BLUE JAY
LN

BLU E J A Y
LN

R
A

V
E

N
R

D

W
E

ST
P

L
E

A
SA

N
T

LAKE
RD

H
IL

L
FA

R
M

C
IR

R
E

D
B

A
R

N
R

D

EVERG REEN
RD

M
E

A
D

O
W

L
A

R
K

  L
N

EAST  OAKS  RD

EA
ST

PLEASA

NT
LA

K
E

RD

HUMMINGBIRD
HILL

RO
BIN LN

THO MPSO N
L

N

NORTH
M ALL ARD RD

N
O

R T
H

M
A

L
L

A
R

D
R

D

P
IN

E
R

D

HAWTHORNE CT

EAST
PLE

A
SA

N
T

LAKE
RD

D
O

G
W

O
O

D
  LN

DEER
HILLS
CIR

EAST O
AKS RD

DOVE LN

M
A

L
LA

R
D

RD

MINK LN

NORTH
MALLARD

CT

SKILLMAN
LN

SPRING FARM LN

SPRING FARM LN

EAST O R IO
LE

LN

BENT
TREE
CT

BLACK
LAKE
CT

BLAC
K

LAKE RD

RED
FOREST

W
AY

RED FOREST WAY

NORTH OAKS
RD

S
O

U
T

H
D

EE P
L AKE RD

EAST PLEASANT LAKE RD

W
EST

PLEASANT LAKE RD

SU

M AC
LN

ISLA
N

D
R

D

ISLA
N

D
RD

SO

UTH
LO

N
G

LA
K

E
T

R

SOUTH LONG LAKE TR

PRESERVE
TR

B
LA

C
K

OA
K

RD

BLACK OAK RD

LO
N

G
M

A
R

SH
LN

P
ET

ER
SO

N
P

L

SCOTCH PI NE RD

S
C

O
T

C
H

P
IN

E
R

D

SCOTCH
PINE

LN

SCOTCH
PINE

CT

SCOTCH
PINE

CIR

DO
N

BUSH RD

SOUTHPOINTECT
RAVEN RD

MEADOWLARK
LN

W ILLOW RD

W
E

S
T

P
L

E
A

SA
N

T
L

A
K

E
R

D EAST PLEASANT LAKE RD

H
IG

H

CIRCLE

W
AY

WEST BAY LN

EAGL E

R
ID

G
E

R
D

E
A

G
LE

R
ID

G
E

R
D

SUNSET
LN

MAYCOMB LN

C
U

N
N

IN
G

H
A

M
 R

D

RA
D

LE
Y 

PL ALCO
TT CT

C
A

L
P

U
R

N
IA

 C
T

M
O

C
K

IN
G

B
IR

D
  C

T

TREE FARM LN

CRESCENT LN

M
O

N
A

R
C

H
C

T

RA
P

P
FARM

B
LV

D

M
O

N
A

R CH WAYM
O

N
A

R
C

H
L

N

RAPP FARM
L

N

R
A

P
P

FA
R

M

P LACE

R
A

P
P

FA
R

M
BLVD

SKI H ILL

RCM-PUD

RMH-PUD

RCM-PUD

RMM-PUD

RMH-PUD

RMM

RSL

RSL-PUD

Future

Red

Forest

RMH-PUD

RSM-PUD

R

RSL

RSL

RSM

R

R

RSL

RSL

R

RSM

R
RMM-PUDRSM

RMM

RSM

R

C

C/S

City of North Oaks Comprehensive Plan

MAP 8
Existing Zoning

Districts Map

OS (Open Space)

RSL (Residential Single Family - Low Density)

RSL-PUD (Residential Single Family - PUD)

RSM (Residential Single Family - Medium Density)

RMM (Residential Multiple Family Medium Density)

RMM-PUD (Residential Multiple Family Medium
Density - PUD)

RMH-PUD (Residential Multiple Family High
Density - PUD)

RCM-PUD (Residential-Commercial Mixed-PUD)

C (Commercial)

C/S (Commercial/Service)

LI (Limited Industrial)

R (Recreation)

HP (Historic Preservation)

Shoreland District Boundaries

Source: City Zoning Map
as of 5 - 10 - 21

North Oaks
Boundary

¦

RSM-PUD (Res. Single Fam. - Med. Density - PUD)

102



April 18, 2024

Kevin Kress, Administrator
City of North Oaks, MN

Via E-mail.  kkress@northoaksmn.gov

RE: Whitebear Water Supply Metering Vaults – Nine (9) Locations
Sambatek Project No.  52886

Dear Kevin,

Whitebear Township is requiring the City of North Oaks to construct a metering pit at each of the nine (9) 
connections to the water system to accurately measure the amount of water provided to the city.    The 
metering pit will include a magnetic meter and bypass piping to allow the removal of the flow meter for 
servicing.  

Below is a brief description of the tasks required for this project.

Design & Biding Services

1. Site survey of the 9 sites  ………………………………………………………………………………………………..…………...$ 3,000

2. Gopher One Locates (9) ………………………………………………………………………………………………...…….………..$   450

3. Preparation of Plans and specifications…………………………………………………………………...…….…….……$18,000

4. Coordinate small utility relocation. (Gas, Telephone, Electric etc)……………………………………..….…$ 2,500

5. Meet with White Bear Lake and City of North Oaks to review the plans and specifications….$   900

6. Make changes and review final Plans and specification and probable cost with North Oak and 
White Bear Lake officials………………………………………………..………………………………………………………………$ 3,500

7. MDH Permits…………………………………………………………………………………….………………….…………………………..$    750

8. Solicit bids and conduct a pre-bid meeting with potential bidders…………………….……………………..$   850

9. Receive and review bids and prepare a letter of award of contract……………………………….……….$  1,500

                                                                                                                         Total Task 1-9 =        $31,450

Construction Observation and Administration

When bids are received and a contractor is selected Sambatek will provide an estimate of fees to 
complete the survey, construction observation and administration based on the contractor's 
estimated time to complete the work.

10. Conduct a pre-construction meeting.

11. Review Shop Drawings

12. Prepare a letter to be sent to City of North Oaks residents regarding construction Schedule and 
impact on the water service.

103

mailto:kkress@northoaksmn.gov


City of North Oaks, MN 
April 18, 2024
Page 2

 pg. 2

13. Observe the construction and send progress reports to all concerned.

14. Review progress payments and recommend payment.

15. Conduct a final review of the construction and prepare a punch list.

16. Recommend final payment and project close out.

17. Complete record survey and record drawings. 

Our understanding of the project is that:
• A standard metering manhole will be used at all nine (9) locations.  
• Plans will be posted on QuestCDN for electronic bidding.
• Sambatek will address one set of design comments by Whitebear Township
• Changes after the initial comments are addressed will be made on an hourly basis charged at our 

normal hourly rates.
• Field inspection will be on as needed basis charged at our regular hourly rates.  The hours to 

complete the observation will be determined when a contractor is selected, and their schedule is 
known.  complete the work. 

• Record drawings will be required including field survey for horizontal and vertical verification.

Schedule
Sambatek will complete the plans and specifications within 30-working days following authorization to 
proceed, assuming 5-working days for plan review by Whitebear Township.  

If this proposal is acceptable, please sign below. 

Respectfully Submitted, 
Sambatek, Inc.

Mike Nielson, PE
Municipal Practice Leader/City Engineer

_____________________________________________________________________________________________
Authorization to Proceed

Sambatek is authorized to proceed with the work as outlined above for an estimated fee of $31,450.

Signed:______________________________________  Date:________________
Kevin Kress, Administrator

Cc: Naeem Qureshi, Sambatek
Jeff Ostrom, Sambatek

104



 

 

 
 Kennedy & Graven 

Fifth Street Towers 

150 South Fifth Street, Suite 700 

Minneapolis, MN 55402 
 

 (612) 337-9245 direct 

bnason@kennedy-graven.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

TO:  Mayor and Members of the Council 

 

FROM: Bridget Nason, City Attorney 

 

DATE: May 3, 2024 

 

RE:  Council Vacancy  

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Background 

 

The City has been advised that Council Member John Shuman will be resigning effective May 15, 

2024. This resignation leaves a vacancy on the Council in the office council member. Because 

there are more than 2 years remaining in his term, the City is required to hold a special election to 

fill that vacancy. In the interim, the City must also fill that vacancy by appointment. A resolution 

formally accepting Councilmember Shuman’s resignation and declaring a vacancy is included in 

your council packet. This Memo discusses the Council’s options for filling that vacant council 

seat.   

 

1. Filling a vacancy on the council 

 

If a temporary or permanent vacancy occurs on the council, the remaining council members are 

required to fill the vacant seat. If less than two years remain in the unexpired term of office for the 

vacant set, the Council shall fill the vacancy by appointment. If more than two years remain on the 

unexpired term, the Council shall fill the vacancy by appointment and a special election shall be 

held at or before the next regular city election, and the appointed person shall serve until the 

qualification of a successor elected at the special election.   

 

A. General Qualifications for Appointment; Filling Existing Vacancy. 

 

Upon resignation of a member of the Council, the Council may appoint any individual who is 

eligible for election to fill the vacancy. Generally, to be eligible to serve as a member of the City 

Council, a person must be a U.S. citizen, a resident of the city, a qualified city voter, and at least 

21 years old. The Council must determine what process it wishes to employ for appointing an 

individual to serve out the remainder of the vacant position’s term. This process could be as simple 

as soliciting applications from interested candidates to a more complicated process including 

interviews with the Council.  

105



 

 

 

As long as at least a quorum of the council is present, a majority vote of those present is sufficient 

to make the appointment. In the event of a tie vote, the mayor is authorized to appoint a person to 

fill the vacant council position. State law does not place any limitation on a mayor’s ability to 

make an appointment in the case of a tie vote. As a result, the mayor can appoint any qualified 

person willing to fill the vacancy. 

 

 

Conclusion 

 

The Council is asked to consider the following actions at its meeting on May 9, 2024: 

 

1. Consider a resolution declaring a vacancy on the council and directing that the vacancy be 

filled at a special election to be held on the same date as the next general election. 

 

2. Provide direction to staff regarding the process it would like to employ to fill that council 

vacancy.  

 

  

106



CITY OF NORTH OAKS 

RAMSEY COUNTY, MINNESOTA 

 

RESOLUTION NO. ________ 

 

RESOLUTION ACCEPTING RESIGNATION OF COUNCILMEMBER JOHN 

SHUMAN AND DECLARING A VACANCY ON THE CITY COUNCIL 

 

WHEREAS, Councilmember John Shuman was duly elected to the North Oaks City 

Council for a term running through 2026; and  

 

WHEREAS, the North Oaks City Council has received the written resignation of 

Councilmember John Shuman effective as of May 15th, 2024. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

NORTH OAKS, MINNESOTA, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

1. The Council accepts Councilmember John Shuman’s resignation as described above. 

 

2. The council declares that a vacancy exists on the Council effective as of May 15th, 

2024. 

 

3. Pursuant to Minn. Stat. § 412.02, subd. 2a, the Council shall fill the vacancy by 

appointment until an election is held pursuant to Minn. Stat. § 412.02, subd. 2a. 

 

4. Since the vacancy has occurred before the first day to file affidavits of candidacy for 

the next regular city election and more than two years remain on the unexpired term of 

Councilmember John Shuman, a special election shall be held at the next regular city 

election on November 5, 2024, and the appointed person shall serve until the 

qualification of a successor elected at the special election to fill the unexpired portion 

of the term.  

 

 

Adopted by the City Council of the City of North Oaks, Minnesota, the 9th day of May, 2024.  

 

Ayes:    Nays: 

 

 

        

___________________________________   

Krista Wolter, Mayor   

 

Attest: 

 

 

___________________________________   

Kevin Kress, City Administrator/City Clerk 

107



April Month in Review    

April 2024 

 
• All diseased oak trees from 2023 have been removed per city ordinance. 

• Confirmed Cudd Homes berm on Spring Farm Ln was planted according to City staff 

discussions.  

• We responded to a homeowner call at 29 Knoll Rd and provided tree care advice. 

• Coordinated brush pick-up program for the end of May and confirmed Budget Tree will 

be providing the services. 

• Over 800 tree seedlings will be distributed to residents on May 5th, May 6th, and May 9th 

at City and Garden Club events. Residents who have had to remove a lot of trees as a 

result of EAB will be encouraged to re-plant areas impacted by EAB.  

• EAB removals have been in full swing and all residents with tagged trees have been 

notified of removal requirements.  

• Provided tree preservation advice for builder at 25 Pine Rd.  

• Marked numerous trees as nuisance trees and notified residents of concerns.  

• Notified County of hazard ash trees along Hodgson Rd. 

 

 

108


	City Council Agenda
	Item 6a. - Fireworks Permit App 6.1.24.pdf
	Item 6a. - Fireworks Permit App 6.8.24.pdf
	Item 6b. - Proclamation - Police Week - North Oaks.pdf
	Item 6d. - 4.11.2024 Council minutes Draft db2.pdf
	Item 6e. - May 2024 Check register.pdf
	Item 6e. - May 2024 Check register detail and charts.pdf
	Item 6e. - May 2024 Budget Spreadsheets.pdf
	Item 6f.   - Commonond App. for Exempt Permit.pdf
	Item 6f.   - CBC 501(c)(3) Letter 2015 (4).pdf
	Item 7a. - MAY2024CouncilMeeting.docx
	Item 9a. - 2024-05-09 CC packet_8 Sherwood Trail.pdf
	Item 9b. - 2024-05-09 CC Packet_garage size ordinance.pdf
	Item 9d. - 4-18-24 Water Meter Pit Proposal.pdf
	Item 9e. - Memo re JS Resignationkk.pdf
	Item 9e. - NO Resolution Council Vacancy JS.pdf
	Item 13a. - April in Review.pdf



